Tazewell County Board
Wednesday, November 19, 2025

Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Board
Michael Harris, Vice-Chairman of the Board

COUNTY BOARD AGENDA

MINUTES

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSPORTATION

LAND USE

LAND USE

LAND USE

LAND USE

LAND USE

LAND USE

PROPERTY

FINANCE

FINANCE

T-25-21

T-25-22

T-25-23

T-25-24

T-25-25

T-25-26

T-25-27

LU-25-13

LU-25-14

LU-25-15

LU-25-16

LU-25-17

LU-25-18

P-25-19

F-25-29

F-25-30

RESOLUTION — SHERIDAN RD. SPEED ORDINANCE

RESOLUTION — JURISDICTIONAL TRANSFER — NORTH MAIN (CH 3)
RESOLUTION — RESOLUTION — ANNUAL EQUIPMENT

RESOLUTION — ANNUAL GENERAL MAINTENANCE — BLR 14220
RESOLUTION — ANNUAL ROAD & BRIDGE

RESOLUTION — NACE CONFERENCE

RESOLUTION — IPLSA CONFERENCE

PROPOSAL BY TRI-COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSIUON TO
PROVIDE ZONING AND PLANNING SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT WITH CENTRAL ILLINOIS FIRE INSPECTION
SERVICES, LLC TO PERFORM COMMERCIAL PLAN REVIEW FOR FIRE AND
LIFE SAFETY AND INSPECTIONS

CONTRACT WITH GLEN GULLETTE TO CONDUCT RESIDENTIAL BUILDING
CODE AND ELECTRICAL INSPECTIONS, AS NEEDED

RENEWAL OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT WITH TUCKER PLUMBING TO
CONDUCT PLUMBING INSPECTIONS AND ADVISORY CONSULTING SERVICES,
AS NEEDED

RENEWAL OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT WITH DICK YOUNG TO CONDUCT
ELECTRICAL INSPECTIONS FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS,
AS NEEDED

AGREEMENT WITH CLOUDPOINT GEOSPATIAL FOR ADDRESS SERVICES FOR
THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF TAZEWELL COUNTY

BID FOR ATTIC INSULATION FOR THE COURTHOUSE
BUDGET TRANSFER FOR VA

BUDGET TRANSFER FOR THE COUNTY CLERK

18

23

29

30

32

33

34

36

38

42

46

50

54

59

65

66




FINANCE

FINANCE

FINANCE

FINANCE

FINANCE

HUMAN RESOURCES

Risk

Risk

EXECUTIVE

EXECUTIVE

EXECUTIVE

EXECUTIVE

DECEMBER 2025 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS

F-25-31

F-25-32

F-25-33

F-25-34

F-25-35

HR-25-24

RM-25-03

RM-25-04

E-25-100

E-25-110

E-25-113

BUDGET TRANSFER FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BUDGET TRANSFER FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

INCREASE FOR THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS PER DIEM
BUDGET TRANSFER FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BUDGET TRANSFER FOR UNIT B CONTRACT SALARY ADJUSTMENT

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN TAZEWELL COUNTY AND
THE ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE LABOR COUNCIL

TRAVELERS PROPERTY, IPRF WORKER'S COMPENSATION, AND OTHER
INSURANCE CARRIERS

SETTLEMENT OF WORKER’'S COMPENSATION CASE
UPON APPROVAL OF IN-PLACE MEETING

SIX MONTH REVIEW OF EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES BY THE STATE'S
ATTORNEY’S OFFICE

ANNUAL APPELLATE PROSECUTOR RESOLUTION

DECOMMISSIONING AGREEMENT FOR ELM GROVE CSG 1, LLC SOLAR
PROJECT

APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS

68

69

70

71

72

74

119

125

126

134

137

157

159




T-25-21

T-25-22

T-25-23

T-25-24

T-25-25

T-25-26

T-25-27

F.

G.

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD

James Carius Community Room
101 S. Capitol Street
Pekin, lllinois 61554

Wednesday, November 19, 2025 - 6:00 p.m.

Brett Grimm - Chairman of the Board
Michael Harris - Vice Chairman of the Board

Roll Call
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

Communications from members of the public and county employees

. Communications from elected and appointed county officials

1. Probation Department Overview by John Horan

Approve the minutes of the October 29, 2025 County Board Proceeding and October
29, 2025 Final Budget Meeting

In-Place Risk Committee Meeting

Consent Agenda:

Transportation

1.

2.

Approve Resolution — Sheridan Rd. Speed Ordinance

Approve Resolution — Jurisdictional Transfer — North Main (CH 3)
Approve Resolution — Annual Equipment

Approve Resolution — Annual General Maintenance — BLR 14220
Approve Resolution — Annual Road & Bridge

Approve Resolution — NACE Conference

Approve Resolution — IPLSA Conference



Land Use

LU-25-13 8. Approve Proposal by Tri-County Regional Planning Commissiuon to Provide
Zoning and Planning Services

LU-25-14 9. Approve Contractual Agreement with Central lllinois Fire Inspection Services, LLC
to perform Commercial Plan Review for Fire and Life Safety and Inspections

LU-25-15 10.  Approve Contract with Glen Gullette to conduct Residential Building Code
and Electrical Inspections, as needed

LU-25-16 11. Approve renewal of Contractual Agreement with Tucker Plumbing to
conduct Plumbing Inspections and advisory consulting services, as needed

LU-25-17 12.  Approve renewal of Contractual Agreement with Dick Young to conduct
Electrical Inspections for Commercial and Residential projects, as needed

LU-25-18 13. Approve Agreement with Cloudpoint Geospatial for address services for the
unincorporated areas of Tazewell County

Property
P-25-19 14. Approve Bid for Attic Insulation for the Courthouse
Finance
F-25-29 15.  Approve budget transfer for VA
F-25-30 16.  Approve budget transfer for the County Clerk
F-25-31 17.  Approve budget transfer for Community Development
F-25-32 18.  Approve budget transfer for Information Technology
F-25-33 19. Approve an increase for the Zoning Board of Appeals Per Diem
F-25-34 20.  Approve budget transfer for Community Development
F-25-35 21.  Approve budget transfer for Unit B Contract Salary Adjustment

Human Resources

HR-25-24 22.  Approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Tazewell County and the
lllinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council



RM-25-03

RM-25-04

E-25-100

E-25-110

E-25-113

E-25-111

E-25-112

23.  Approve Travelers property, IPRF worker’'s compensation, and other insurance
carriers

24.  Approve Settlement of Worker's Compensation Case
Upon Approval of In-Place Meeting

Executive

25.  Approve six month review of Executive Session minutes by the State’s Attorney’s
Office

26.  Approve the Annual Appellate Prosecutor resolution

27.  Approve Decommissioning Agreement for EIm Grove CSG 1, LLC Solar Project

Appointments and Reappointments

28.

29.

Approve reappointment of Sarah Sies to the Schaeferville Fire Protection District

Approve reappointment of Jeffrey Keyser to the Mackinaw Valley Water Authority

Unfinished Business

New Business

Review of approved bills

Approve the December 2025 Calendar of Meetings

Recess to December 17, 2025



Chairman Brett Grimm Vice Chairman, Michael Harris, Dist. 3

Kim D. Joesting, Dist. 1 Jay Hall, Dist. 1

Nancy Proehl, Dist. 1 Deene Milam, Dist. 1
Mark Goddard, Dist. 1 Joe Woodrow, Dist. 1
Kaden Nelms, Dist. 1 Jon Hopkins, Dist. 2

Nick Graff, Dist. 2 Maxwell Schneider, Dist. 2
Greg Menold, Dist. 2 Cathryn Stump, Dist. 2
Greg Sinn, Dist. 2 Eric Stahl, Dist. 2

Eric Schmidgall, Dist. 3 John C. Ackerman Russ Crawford, Dist. 3
Dave Mingus, Dist. 3 County Clerk Aaron Phillips, Dist. 3
Tammy Rich-Stimson, Dist. 3 Greg Longfellow, Dist. 3

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD
MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 29, 2025
6:00 PM
James Carius Community Room, Tazewell Law & Justice Center,
101 S. Capitol Street, Pekin, lllinois 61554

ROLL CALL BY COUNTY CLERK

Attendance was taken by Roll Call, and the following members of the board were
present. Chairman Grimm, Members Crawford, Goodard, Graff, Harris, Hopkins,
Joesting, Longfellow, Menold, Milam, Mingus, Phillips, Schmidgall, Schneider, Sinn,
Stahl, Stump, Woodrow — 18. Absent: Member Hall, Nelms, Proehl, Rich-Stimson — 4.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman Grimm led the invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

COMMUNICATION FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND/OR COUNTY
EMPLOYEES

Dorsey Hill, Greater Peoria Economic Development Council spoke about a meeting on
December 10" in Tremont.

PRESENTATION

Tazewell County Treasurer, Hannah Clark, presented an overview of her department.
She provided a power point that explained the different reports she provides for the
elected and appointed officials. The Treasurer deposits all funds and fees collected and
is responsible for all receipting and accounting of revenue, cash management and
investments, debt management and county mail. Another important function for the
Treasurer is the mailing, collection and disbursement of property taxes.



TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED & APPOINTED COUNTY OFFICIALS

Member Russ Crawford remarked on a recent vote on rules and bidding at the
September 2025 County Board Meeting.

APPROVE THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 24,2025, COUNTY BOARD
PROCEEDING AND OCTOBER 6, 2025, TENTATIVE BUDGET MEETING

Member Joesting moved to approve the minutes of September 24, 2025; County Board
Proceedings and October 6, 2025, Tentative Budget Meeting as printed; seconded by
Member Harris. Motion to approve the minutes as printed were approved by voice vote
of 18 Yeas; 0 Nays.

IN-PLACE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING
Meeting started at 6:15 PM.

Risk Management Committee meeting ended at 6:16 PM.
CONSENT AGENDA

Transportation: Approve Resolution — Towerline Rd. Bridge —23-0041-00-BR,
Resolution T-25-19.

Transportation: Approve Resolution —County Engineer Salary — BLR09221,
Resolution T-25-20.

Property: Approve PJ Hoerr to serve as Project Manager over renovations and
improvements to existing buildings, Resolution P-25-18.

Finance: Approve FY25 budget transfers for Health Department, Resolution F-25-
28.

Finance: Approve FY25 budget transfers for Animal Control, Resolution F-25-29.

Human Resources: Approve a change in the contribution to the flexible spending
account for dependent care and health care costs for 2026, Resolution HR-25-18.

Human Resources: Approve wage increases for non-union employees for FY26,
Resolution HR-25-19.

Human Resources: Approve the FY26 insurance premiums, Resolution HR-25-20.
Human Resources: Approve the FY26 COBRA rates, Resolution HR-25-21.

Human Resources: Approve a change to the Qualified High-Deductible PPO
Health Plan, Resolution HR-25-22.



TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

Human Resources: Approve changes to the Health Savings Account (HAS)
contribution limits for 2026, Resolution HR-25-23.

Risk: Approve aroad use agreement for Fast Ave Solar, LLC, Resolution E-25-95.

Executive: Approve the disposal of a damaged Sheriff’'s Squad Car, Resolution
RM-25-02.

Executive: Approve 4™ quarter 2025 payment to Greater Peoria Economic
Development Council, Resolution E-25-99.

Executive: Approve County Trustee Resolutions, Resolution E-25-102.

Executive: Approve employment agreement for County Administrator,
Resolution E-25-103.

Executive: Approve Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal (CAMA) License,
Maintenance and Support Agreement with Devnet, Inc. and interested Tazewell
County Townships. Resolution E-25-106.

Executive: Approve Emergency Declaration for Justice Center water system
remediation, Resolution E-25-107.

Member Hopkins moved to approve the Consent Agenda items as outlined in the
agenda packet; seconded by Member Crawford. The Consent Agenda was approved
by voice vote of 18 Yeas; 0 Nays.

The following items were removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion.

Item 3 Property: Conversation took place regarding PJ Hoerr serving as Project
Manager over renovation and improvements to existing buildings. County Administrator
and Board Chairman explained the reasoning for PJ Hoerr serving as Project Manager.

Member Hopkins motioned to amend language that stated “PJ Hoerr Inc. will follow the
procurement procedures set forth by the County Board in Resolution E-11-84 with
regards to the Condition for Use, and the bidding process rules with all projects listed
and any additional projects added”; seconded by Member Crawford.

Assistant States Attorney Mike Holly responded to Member Schneider’s request about
PJ Hoerr’s contract.

Conversation continued regarding the process PJ Hoerr would utilize for contractors’
verses if the County had to bid on each project along with the bidding process in
general.

Member Menold stated he was not in support of the amendment or resolution.

3

8



TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

Member Crawford voiced his concern about this matter and stated he was not in
support of the resolution.

Member Harris indicated he was not in support of the amendment.

Motion to Amend Resolution P-25-18 with the following additional language “PJ Hoerr
Inc. will follow the procurement procedures set forth by the County Board in Resolution
E-11-84 with regards to the Condition for Use, and the bidding process rules with all
projects listed and any additional projects added” was passed by roll call vote of 10
Yeas; 7 Nays — Graff, Harris, Joesting, Menold, Schneider, Sinn, Stahl.

Member Graff motioned to return Resolution P-25-18 back to the Property Committee
for further review; seconded by Member Stump

Motion was passed by roll call vote of 15 Yeas; 2 Nays — Harris, Stahl.
Resolution P-25-18 will be returned to the Property Committee for further discussion.

Item 12 Risk Management: Member Mingus motioned to approve the disposal of a
damaged squad car from the Sheriff’'s Department; seconded by Member Graff. Motion
passed by voice vote of 18 Yeas; 0 Nays. Resolution RM-25-02 was passed by the
County Board.

APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS

Member Sinn moved to reappoint Alisha Dault to the Human Services Transportation
Planning Commission; seconded by Member Crawford. Resolution E-25-96 was
approved by voice vote of 18 Yeas; 0 Nays.

Member Sinn moved to appoint Matthew Weller to the East Peoria Drainage and Levee
District; seconded by Member Crawford. Resolution E-25-97 was approved by voice
vote of 18 Yeas; 0 Nays.

Member Sinn moved to reappoint Aaron Birky to the Hopedale Fire Protection District;
seconded by Member Crawford. Resolution E-25-101 was approved by voice vote of
18 Yeas; 0 Nays.

Member Sinn moved to reappoint Cathryn Stump to the Persons with Developmental
Disabilities Board; seconded by Member Crawford. Resolution E-25-108 was approved
by voice vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention — Stump.

Member Sinn moved to reappoint Angie Lapsley to the Zoning Board of Appeals;
seconded by Member Crawford. Resolution E-25-109 was approved by voice vote of
18 Yeas; 0 Nays.



TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

It was determined the board had no unfinished business at this time.
NEW BUSINESS

It was determined the board had no new business at this time.
REVIEW OF APPROVED BILLS

Board members have been sent the approved bills.

APPROVE NOVEMBER 2025 CALENDAR

Member Joesting moved to approve the November 2025 calendar; seconded by
Member Hopkins. Motion to approve the November 2025 calendar was approved by
voice vote of 18 Yeas; 0 Nays.

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Grimm informed the board members about the Emergency Management
Meeting on November 13, 2025.

There being no further business before the Board, Chairman Grimm announced the
meeting adjourned. The Tazewell County Board Meeting adjourned at 6:54 PM. The
next scheduled County Board meeting will be on November 19, 2025.

10



Chairman Brett Grimm Vice Chairman, Michael Harris, Dist. 3

Kim D. Joesting, Dist. 1 Jay Hall, Dist. 1

Nancy Proehl, Dist. 1 Deene Milam, Dist. 1
Mark Goddard, Dist. 1 Joe Woodrow, Dist. 1
Kaden Nelms, Dist. 1 Jon Hopkins, Dist. 2

Nick Graff, Dist. 2 Maxwell Schneider, Dist. 2
Greg Menold, Dist. 2 Cathryn Stump, Dist. 2
Greg Sinn, Dist. 2 Eric Stahl, Dist. 2

Eric Schmidgall, Dist. 3 John C. Ackerman Russ Crawford, Dist. 3
Dave Mingus, Dist. 3 County Clerk Aaron Phillips, Dist. 3
Tammy Rich-Stimson Dist. 3 Greg Longfellow, Dist. 3

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD
FINAL BUDGET MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 29, 2025

6:00 PM

James Carius Community Room, Tazewell Law & Justice Center,
101 S. Capitol Street, Pekin, lllinois 61554

ROLL CALL BY COUNTY CLERK

Attendance was taken by Roll Call, and the following members of the board were
present: Chairman Grimm, Members Crawford, Goddard, Graff, Harris, Hopkins,
Joesting, Longfellow, Menold, Milam, Mingus, Phillips, Schmidgall, Schneider, Sinn,
Stahl, Stump, Woodrow -18. Absent Members were: Hall, Nelms, Proehl, Rich-
Stimson-— 4.

REVIEW AND AMEND FISCAL YEAR 2026 BUDGET

County Administrator/Finance Director Mindy Darcy provided an overview of the FY26
Final Budget. She provided a power point presentation that discussed two main
adjustments to the FY2026 Budget, which were Capital Improvement Plan Adjustment
and Salary Study Adjustments. Administrator Darcy provided handouts to the board
members with the proposed budget adjustments and the facilities project updates. She
spoke on the Capital Improvement Plan and provided a list of proposed projects at the
various county buildings.

She thanked Kelly Johnigk and Sade Turner for their assistance in the budget process.

GENERAL FUND

Motion by Member Graff to open discussion of the General Fund Budget; seconded by
Member Stahl.

Discussions occurred pertaining to the individual budget lines for the General Fund
Budget. Some department budgets did not require any discussions prior to approval.

1"



TAZEWELL CO. FINAL BUDGET MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

Circuit Clerk: Member Crawford moved to amend the Circuit Clerk’s budget with a
$50,000.00 increase; seconded by Member Stahl. Motion to approve the Circuit Clerk’s
Budget as amended was passed by the board.

Emergency Management: Member Graff moved to amend the EMA’s budget with a
$5,100.00 increase; seconded by Member Hopkins. Motion to approve the EMA Budget
as amended was passed by the board.

County Administration: Member Stahl moved to amend the County Administration
budget with a $479,848.00 increase; seconded by Member Schmidgall. Motion to
approve the County Administration Budget as amended was passed by the board.

Human Resources: Member Crawford moved to amend the Human Resources budget
with a $3,699.00 increase; seconded by Member Hopkins. Motion to approve the
Human Resources Budget as amended was passed by the board.

Supervisor of Assessments: Member Crawford moved to amend the Supervisor of
Assessments budget with a $2,200.00 increase; seconded by Member Woodrow.
Motion to approve the Supervisor of Assessments Budget as amended passed by the
board.

Building Maintenance: Member Joesting moved to amend the Building Maintenance
budget with a $36,950.00 increase; seconded by Member Stump. Motion to approve
the Building Maintenance Budget as amended was passed by the board.

Motion by Member Crawford to amend the General Fund Budget to reflect changes;
seconded by Member Hopkins.

Motion to approve the General Fund budget as amended was passed by roll call vote of
17 Yeas; 0 Nays.

County Administrator Darcy indicated the Amended General Fund budget would be
$42,680,274.00 and the Contingency Line would be $2,134,014.00.

Amended General Fund Amounts are as follows:

Circuit Clerk $1,793,009.00
Jury Commission $244,942.00
State’s Attorney $3,742,981.00
Public Defender $2,096.002.00
Courts $560,213.00

Court Services $3,563,151.00
Court Security $953,414.00
Sheriff $17,017,991.00

EMA $358,836.00

12



TAZEWELL CO. FINAL BUDGET MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

Coroner $626,121.00

Community Development $540,524.00
County Board $321,572.00

Auditor $90,930.00

County Clerk/Elections $2,002,541.00
Recorder of Deeds $286,676.00
Treasurer and Tax Collector $585,461.00
County Administration $4,047,632.00
Information Technology $1,856,300.00
Human Resources $330,202.00
Finance $759,320.00

External Audit $177,000.00

County General Farm $28,500.00
Assessments $562,736.00

Board of Review $129,625.00

Building Maintenance $2,180,881.00

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Finance Chairman Harris began discussion on the Special Revenue Funds. The
Special Revenue Funds were discussed and approved as follows:

Member Crawford motioned to amend IMRFE budget; seconded by Member Stump.
Motion to approve IMRF as amended passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays.
Amended Budget amount approved was $2,391,908.00.

Member Crawford motioned to amend Social Security budget; seconded by Member
Joesting. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Amended Budget amount
approved was $2,235,325.00.

Member Longfellow motioned to approve Health Internal Services budget; seconded by
Member Hopkins. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $7,837,234.00

Member Menold motioned to approve Township Bridge Fund budget; seconded by
Member Crawford. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $470,400.00.

Member Crawford motioned to amend County Highway budget; seconded by Member
Graff. Motion to approve County Highway as amended passed by roll call vote of 17
Yeas; 0 Nays. Amended Budget amount approved was $4,251,620.00.

Member Crawford motioned to approve County Motor Fuel Tax budget; seconded by
Member Woodrow. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $5,027,304.00.

13



TAZEWELL CO. FINAL BUDGET MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

Member Crawford motioned to amend Township Road Fuel Tax budget; seconded by
Member Graff. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Amended Budget
amount approved was $2,772,000.00.

Member Menold motioned to approve County Bridge Fund budget; seconded by
Member Stahl. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $3,042,131.00.

Member Crawford motioned to approve Matching Tax budget; seconded by Member
Woodrow. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; O Nays. Budget amount
approved was $2,565,363.00.

Member Sinn motioned to approve County Health budget; seconded by Member
Crawford. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; O Nays. Budget amount approved
was $7,351,987.00.

Member Graff motioned to approve Solid Waste Fund budget; seconded by Member
Joesting. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount approved
was $504,213.00.

Member Phillips motioned to approve Strengthening IL Public Health Admin Grant
budget; seconded by Member Stump. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0
Nays. Budget amount approved was $79,536.00.

Motion by Member Crawford to amend Veterans’ Assistance Fund budget; seconded by
Member Graff. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Amended Budget
amount approved was $376,277.00.

Member Longfellow motioned to Amend the Animal Control budget; seconded by
Member Phillips. Motion to amend passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays.
Amended Budget amount approved was $1,560,557.00.

Member Hopkins motioned to amend GIS budget; seconded by Member Woodrow.
Motion to amend passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Amended Budget amount
approved was $344,078.00

Member Sinn motioned to approve Persons with Developmental Disabilities budget;
seconded by Member Woodrow. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays.
Budget amount approved was $529,596.00.

Member Mingus motioned to approve American Rescue Plan budget; seconded by
Member Woodrow. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $0.00.

14



TAZEWELL CO. FINAL BUDGET MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

Member Phillips motioned to approve National Opioid Settlement budget; seconded by
Member Milam. Motion to amend passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget
amount approved was $134,128.00.

Member Phillips motioned to approve LATCF Grant budget; seconded by Member
Joesting. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount approved
was $33,333.00.

Member Sinn motioned to amend Energy Transition Community Grant budget;
seconded by Member Crawford. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; O Nays.
Amended Budget amount approved was $674,500.00.

Member Schmidgall motioned to approve Sheriff Grant Fund budget; seconded by
Member Hopkins. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $91,577.00.

Member Milan motioned to approve Treasurer’'s Automation Fund budget; seconded by
Member Mingus. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $14,835.00.

Member Stump motioned to approve Probation Upgrade Fund budget; seconded by
Member Milan. Motion passed by voice vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount
approved was $255,464.00.

Member Crawford motioned to amend Risk Management & Liability Fund budget;
seconded by Member Schneider. Motion to amend passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas;
0 Nays. Amended Budget amount approved was $2,289,386.00.

Member Phillips motioned to approve Drug Court Fund budget; seconded by Member
Milan. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; 0 Nays. Budget amount approved
was $48,850.00.

Member Crawford motioned to Amend the Capital Improvement Fund budget; seconded
by Member Mingus. Motion to Amend passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; O Nays.
Amended Budget amount approved was $46,319,121.00.

Member Hopkins motioned to approve Recorder’'s Special Document Storage Fund
budget; seconded by Member Crawford. Motion passed by roll call vote of 17 Yeas; O
Nays. Budget amount approved was $349,000.00.

15



TAZEWELL CO. FINAL BUDGET MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

TAX LEVY ORDINANCES

Motion by Member Crawford to approve the Annual Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year
2026; seconded by Member Longfellow. Motion passed by roll call vote of 14 Yeas; 3
Nays — Hopkins, Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Crawford to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for County General
Fund Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $7,862,427.00; seconded by Member Mingus.
Motion passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard, Hopkins, Longfellow,
Schneider.

Motion by Member Crawford to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for Municipal
Retirement Fund Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $1,134,230.00; seconded by
Member Longfellow. Motion passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard,
Hopkins, Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Crawford to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for Social Security
Contributions for Fiscal Year 2026 for $1.407.499.00; seconded by Member Stump.
Motion passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard, Hopkins, Longfellow,
Schneider.

Motion by Member Longfellow to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for County Highway
Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $2,145,837.00; seconded by Member Phillips. Motion
passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard, Hopkins, Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Graff to amend the Tax Levy Ordinance for County Bridge Fund
Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $986,083.00; seconded by Member Phillips. Motion
as amended passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard, Hopkins,
Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Sinn to amend the Tax Levy Ordinance for County Highway
Matching Tax Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $937,522.00; seconded by Member
Crawford. Motion as amended passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard,
Hopkins, Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Phillips to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for County Health Fund
Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $1,201,392.00; seconded by Member Crawford.
Motion passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard, Hopkins, Longfellow,
Schneider.

Motion by Member Graff to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for Veterans’ Assistance
Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $377,512.00; seconded by Member Stahl. Motion
passed by roll call vote of 14 Yeas; 3 Nays — Hopkins, Longfellow, Schneider.

16



TAZEWELL CO. FINAL BUDGET MINUTES OCTOBER 29, 2025

Motion by Member Joesting to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for Persons with
Developmental Disabilities Fund Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $536,505.00;
seconded by Member Sinn. Motion passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays —
Hopkins, Joesting, Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Longfellow to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for Liability and Risk
Management Purposes for Fiscal Year 2026 for $1,333,109.00; seconded by Member
Stahl. Motion passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard, Hopkins,
Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Mingus to approve the Tax Levy Ordinance for University of Illinois
Extension for Fiscal Year 2026 for $151,000.00; seconded by Member Phillips. Motion
passed by roll call vote of 13 Yeas; 4 Nays — Goddard, Hopkins, Longfellow, Schneider.

Motion by Member Crawford to approve the Truth in Taxation Certificate of Compliance;
seconded by Member Graff. Motion passed by roll call vote of 14 Yeas; 3 Nays —
Goddard, Longfellow, Schneider.

Member Crawford voiced his concerns with board members voting against the tax levy
ordinances.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the Board, Finance Chairman Mike Harris
announced the meeting was adjourned. The Tazewell County Board Final Budget
Meeting was adjourned at 8:14 P.M. The next regular scheduled County Board meeting
will be November 19, 2025.

17



T-25-21 (P1:5)
COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of Tazewell County Board:

Your Transportation Committee has considered the following SPEED ZONE ORDINANCE and
recommends that it be adopted by the Board.

OF AN ALTERED SPEED ZONE

IT IS HEREBY DECLARED by the Board of Tazewell County, Illinois, that the basic statutory vehicular
speeds limits established by Section 11-601 of the Illinois Vehicle Code are greater, or less than that
considered reasonable and proper on the street or highway listed in the following schedule for which
Groveland Township Road District has maintenance responsibility and which is not under the jurisdiction
of the Department of Transportation, State of Illinois.

BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that this Board has caused to be made an engineering and traffic investigation
upon the streets or highways listed in the Schedule; and

BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that, by virtue of Section 11-604 of the above Code, this Board determines
and declares that reasonable and proper absolute maximum speed limits upon those streets and highways
described in the Schedule, shall be as stated therein.

BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that, by virtue of Section 11-604 of the above Code, this Board
has reviewed the supporting data and findings of the engineering and traffic investigation for each proposed
speed zone of said street or highway described in the Schedule, which is included as a part of this ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that signs giving notice of the proposed maximum speed limits for the zone
or zones of said street or highway described in the Schedule shall be erected in conformance with the
standards and specifications contained in the Illinois Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets
and Highways.

BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that this ordinance shall take effect immediately after the erection of said
signs giving notice of the maximum speed limits.

EE IR S S
I, John Ackerman, County Clerk in and for Tazewell County, in the State aforesaid, and keeper of the records
and files thereof, as provided by statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect, and complete
copy of an ordinance adopted by the Board of Tazewell County at its regular meeting held at Pekin, Illinois
on November 19, 2025.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said County at my office
in Tazewell County, this 19th  day of __November , 2025.

John Ackerman - County Clerk

Brett Grimm - County Board Chairman

18



NAME OF STREET
OR HIGHWAY

Sheridan Rd.
designated as TR 63

SCHEDULE OF ALTERED ZONE

EXACT LIMITS OF ZONE

City of Pekin eastern coporate limits
(approx. 480" east of Veterans Rd.)
easterly a distance of 1740 feet (0.330 miles)

to California Rd. (TR 128)

19

T-25-21 (P2:5)

MAXIMUM
SPEED LIMITS

35 MPH



Sheridan Rd.(TR 63) T-25-21

(P3:5)
Proposed 35 MPH Speed Zone

Z,>=

20
Irrage Landsat / Copernicus


paugspurger
Polygon


21



T-25-21
(P5:5)

MH Corbin Traffic Analyzer Study
Computer Generated Summary Report
City:

Street: Sheridan Rd.
Location: Groveland Township

A study of vehicle traffic was conducted with the device having serial number 405302. The study was done
in the EB & WB lane at Sheridan Rd. in, IL in Tazewell county. The study began on 10/14/2025 at 11:00
AM and concluded on 10/15/2025 at 11:00 AM, lasting a total of 24.00 hours. Traffic statistics were
recorded in 15 minute time periods. The total recorded volume showed 3,880 vehicles passed through the
location with a peak volume of 120 on 10/14/2025 at [04:30 PM-04:45 PM] and a minimum volume of 0 on
10/15/2025 at [12:30 AM-12:45 AM]. The AADT count for this study was 3,880.

SPEED

Chart 1 lists the values of the speed bins and the total traffic volume for each bin. At least half the vehicles
were traveling in the 35 - 40 MPH range or lower. The average speed for all classified vehicles was 39
MPH with 10.36% vehicles exceeding the posted speed of 45 MPH. 0.59% percent of the total vehicles
were traveling in excess of 55 MPH. The mode speed for this traffic study was 35MPH and the 85th
percentile was 44.24 MPH.

< 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65
to to to to to to to to to to to to to
9 14 19 24 29 34 39 44 49 54 59 64 >
7 10 10 81 610 1569 1179 314 64 9 8 6

CHART 1

CLASSIFICATION

Chart 2 lists the values of the classification bins and the total traffic volume accumulated for each bin.

Most of the vehicles classified during the study were Passenger Vehicles. The number of Passenger
Vehicles in the study was 2901 which represents 75 percent of the total classified vehicles. The number of
Vans & Pickups in the study was 883 which represents 23 percent of the total classified vehicles. The
number of Busses & Trucks in the study was 46 which represents 1 percent of the total classified vehicles.
The number of Tractor Trailers in the study was 39 which represents 1 percent of the total classified
vehicles.

< 18 21 24 28 32 38 44
to to to to to to to to
17 20 23 27 31 37 43 >
2901 | 836 47 5 24 33 19 4
CHART 2
HEADWAY

During the peak traffic period, on 10/14/2025 at [04:30 PM-04:45 PM] the average headway between
vehicles was 7.438 seconds. During the slowest traffic period, on 10/15/2025 at [12:30 AM-12:45 AM] the
average headway between vehicles was 900 seconds.

WEATHER
The roadway surface temperature over the period of the study varied between 64.00 and 95.00 degrees F.

10/17/2025 02:53 PM Page: 1

22


paugspurger
Highlight


T-25-22
COMMITTEE REPORT

Addendum #2
Mr. Chairman and Members of Tazewell County Board:

Your Transportation Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board.

RESOLUTION

Providing for the deletion of North Main Street (County Highway 3). From a point 880 ft (.167)
north of North St. and thence north 0.51 miles to the north edge of the radius return of Cruger
Road in its entirety from the County Highway System in Tazewell County, Illinois.

WHEREAS the County Board of Tazewell County and the City of Washington wish to enter into
the attached Jurisdictional Transfer Agreement of the above location to the Municipal Street
System.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves the attached
Jurisdictional Transfer Agreement (BLR 05212) and authorize the County Board Chairman to
execute accordingly.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the above location, with Department of Transportation
approval, be deleted from the highway system of Tazewell County and that said route is identified
as County Highway 3, from a point 880 ft (.167) north of North St. and thence north 0.51 miles to
the north edge of the radius return of Cruger Road in its entirety.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notify the County Board Chairman,
Chairman of the Transportation Committee, the County Engineer, the City of Washington, and
submit three (3) certified signed originals of the AGREEMENT and Resolution to IDOT District
4 Bureau of Local Roads and Streets as notification of this action.

I, John C. Ackerman, County Clerk in and for said County of Tazewell in the State of Illinois,
and keeper of the records and files thereof, as provided by statue, do hereby certify the foregoing
to be true, perfect and complete original of a Resolution adopted by the County Board of
Tazewell County at its meeting held on November 19, 2025.

IN TESTIMOSY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set by hand and seal this 19" Day of November,
2025.

ATTEST:

County Clerk County Board Chairman

23



Jurisdictional Transfer Agreement
(Local Public Agency to Local Public Agency)

CONVEYOR RECIPIENT

Local Public Agency No. 1 Local Public Agency No. 2

Tazewell County City of Washington

LPA Type County LPA Type County
County Tazewell Municipality Tazewell

In accordance with authority granted in Section 4-409 of the lllinois Highway Code, this agreement is made and entered into between the
above Local Public Agency No. 1 hereinafter referred to as "Conveyor" and the above Local Public Agency No. 2, hereinafter referred to
as "Recipient", to transfer the jurisdiction of the designated location from the Conveyor to the Recipient.

Location Description
Road Name Route(s) Length (miles)

North Main Street FAP 0398 (CH 3) 0.51
Key Route(s) Information

090 20398 000000 (Station 1.02-.51)

Termini

From a point 880 ft (.167) north of North St. and thence north 0.51 miles to the north edge of the radius return of
Cruger Rd. in its entirety.

This transfer [X] does not [ | does include NBIS Structure No(s). [N/A

Include For Counties Only
WHEREAS, the authority to make changes to the County Highway System is granted to the County by Section 5-105 of the lllinois
Highway Code. NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED that the County Board of said County will pass a resolution providing for the transfer of
the above location and shall attach hereto and make a part thereof a copy a location map as Addendum No. 1 and an original of the
resolution as an Addendum, and

Include For Municipalities Only
WHEREAS, the authority to make changes to the Municipal Street System is granted to the Municipality of Section 7-101 of the lllinois
Highway Code. NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED that the corporate authority of said municipality will pass an ordinance providing for
the transfer of the above location and shall attach hereto and make a part thereof a copy of a location map as Addendum No. 1 and an
original of the ordinance as an Addendum, and

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED, that this jurisdictional transfer will become effective (check one):

X] Upon IDOT approval ] calendar days after [] other
Attachments
Additional information and/or stipulations, if any, are hereby attached and identified below as being a part of this agreement.
[X] Location Map (Addendum No.1) Xl |City of Washington Ordinance
X Ordinance/Resolution (Addendum No. 2) ]

IT IS FURTHER AGREED, that the provisions of this agreement shall be binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties hereto, their
successor and assigns.

Signatures
APPROVED BY CONVEYOR APPROVED BY RECIPIENT
Name of Local Public Agency Official Name of Local Public Agency Official
Brett Grimm HLiIija Stevens
Title Title
County Board Chairman - Tazewell County HMayor - City of Washington
Local Public Agency Official Signature & Date Local Public Agency Official Signature & Date

Completed 10/30/25 Page?ftof 2 BLR 05212 (Rev. 01/17/23)



STATE OF ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

APPROVED
Director

Office of Highways Project Implementation Signature & Date

Completed 10/30/25 Page?Pof 2 BLR 05212 (Rev. 01/17/23)















































mailto:zoning@tazewell-il.gov








































LU-25-18
COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Land Use Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends it
be Adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Tazewell County Land Use Committee has reviewed the attached
agreement with Cloudpoint Geospatial to enter into a one year agreement beginning
December 1, 2025, through November 30, 2026, for address services for the
unincorporated areas of Tazewell County for a financial commitment as follows:

WHEREAS, the Land Use Committee further approves the proposal with the
following conditions:

1. Said contract shall be funded through the general revenue fund with said
fund being replenished by fees collected through addressing applications
accepted by the Community Development Administrator;

2. Said contract shall be subject to approval of the Community Development’s
Fiscal Year 2026 Operating Budget by the Tazewell County Board,;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board approve this
Contractual Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk shall notify
Municipal Addressing Services, the Tazewell County Auditor and the Community
Development Administrator of this action.

Adopted this day of , 2025

Tazewell County Board Chairman
ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk

54



928 W. Mt. Vernon St.
A CLOUDPOINT Metamora, IL 61548

m CEOSPATIAL 877.377.8124

sales@cloudpointgeo.com

Sales Quote

Prepared for: Jaclynn Workman Quote Number: 2010
Tazewell County Date: July 9, 2025
11 South 4th Street, Ste 400 Expiration: 180 Days

Pekin, lllinois 61554

Service Subtotal

9-1-1Addressing Services $6,000.00
Cloudpoint will provide 9-1-1 addressing services to the County via the steps listed below:

«  Receive requests for new addresses or requests to update existing address points from
the County

«  Assign the address based on County requirements
« Create or update an address point in the GIS data
«  Provide the addressing information back to the County so it can be forwarded to the

appropriate agencies.

Total $6,000.00

Notes:
«  Cloudpoint will provide these services for up to forty (40) addresses in the contract performance period.

« Additional Addresses will be charged at the rate of $200 per update.

The initial term of this Contract shall commence on START DATE: December 1, 2025 and shall continue through

twelve (12) calendar months, and including END DATE: November 30th, 2025 at which time the Contract shall

conclude unless extended by mutual agreement of both Cloudpoint and the County.

55


JWorkman
Typewritten Text
December 1, 2025

JWorkman
Typewritten Text
November 30th, 2025



928 W. Mt. Vernon St.
A CLOUDPOINT Metamora, IL 61548

m CEOSPATIAL 877.377.8124

sales@cloudpointgeo.com

CLOUDPOINT GEOSPATIAL, INC. - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Proposal provided with these terms & conditions is valid for ninety (90) days from the date of submittal, after which

Cloudpoint Geospatial, Inc. reserves the right to change or amend the Proposal. Acceptance of the Proposal is subject to

agreement to these terms & conditions (the "Agreement”). In this Agreement, “Consultant” refers to Cloudpoint Geospatial, Inc,, an

lllinois corporation, and “Client” refers to the party set forth in the Proposal.

1. Performance of Services: The Consultant shall perform the services outlined in this proposal (the “Services”) in accordance with

this Agreement. The relationship between the Client and the Consultant is solely that of independent contractor and nothing in

this Agreement shall be construed or deemed to create any other relationship including one of employment, agency or joint

venture.

2. Additional Services: Consultant shall be compensated for technical support for any issues arising from connectivity to the

Client’s network should remote connectivity be required for the Services.

3. Technical Support: Free technical support in relation to service/product provided in this contract will be provided for a period of

thirty (30) days following final project delivery. Further support may be provided under a separate contract agreed upon between

the parties.

4. User Acceptance: The Client will be provided a period of three (3) weeks to test and review each configured or customized

application prior to final delivery. Once the Client performs their user acceptance testing, Client may enter feedback into the

documentation provided. Consultant will then provide one round of upgrades to the application prior to making final delivery. The

Consultant shall be compensated for any additional upgrades or repairs to the application(s) following the user acceptance
eriod.

g. Access to Site: Unless otherwise stated, the Consultant will have access to the site for activities necessary for the performance

of the services. The Consultant will take reasonable precautions to minimize damage due to these activities but has not included

in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage and will not be responsible for such costs.

6. Term and Termination:

a. The “Term” of this Agreement extends through the term set forth in the Proposal. If the project completion date is delayed
more than 30 days as a result of the Consultant’s schedule or Client’'s schedule, a reasonable adjustment in the Term will be
made. This Agreement may be terminated by either party should the other party fail to perform any of its obligation hereunder;
the terminating party must provide not less than thirty (30) days’ notice of a breach of this Agreement to the other party prior to
terminating this Agreement, and if such breach is curable and is not cured without such thirty (30) day period, the terminating
party may provide notice of immediate termination of this Agreement.

b. Upon termination by Consultant due to a breach by Client, any payments which would have been due from Client if this
Agreement had not been terminated shall accelerate and be paid immediately by Client. Upon termination of this Agreement for
any other reason, including mutual consent to terminate, Client shall make any payments which accrued and became due during
the Term, including any pro rata payments for partial Services performed during the Term. Consultant will release any partially
performed Services to Client upon payment by Client as specified in this paragraph.

7. Payment:
Client agrees to pay the Consultant for all Services performed and all costs incurred by Consultant in performance of the same.

a. Managed Services: Invoices for the Consultant’s services will be submitted on a monthly basis throughout the length of the
contract. Client agrees to pay the Consultant within thirty (30) days of receiving an invoice unless otherwise agreed to in writing.
Clients who choose to pay for twelve (12) months of services in advance shall receive a discount of two and one-half percent
(2.5%) off the total annual fee. This discount applies only to full annual prepayments made at the beginning of the twelve-month
period. The discount is non-refundable in the event of early termination of the agreement.

b. Block of Hours: Client will be invoiced for the entire contract amount upon receipt of executed contract. Consultant makes
no guarantee of work to be completed in the amount of hours purchased.

c. Lump Sum: Client will be invoiced for 20% of the contract amount after execution of the contract with the remainder to be
invoiced according to the payment schedule included herein. If a payment schedule is not included, the remaining project
balance will be invoiced in months 2 and 3, for a total of 100% invoiced 90 days from the contract execution date.

d. Without limiting Consultant’s other rights at law and as set forth herein, Consultant reserves the right to pause its provision
of Services if Client has not paid any amount due hereunder by the due date, and if Client is required to make any payment
upfront, Consultant is not required to begin services until such payment is made.

e. Accounts unpaid thirty (30) days after the payment due date are subject to a monthly service charge of 15% (or the
maximum legal rate) on the unpaid balance. In the event any portion of an account remains unpaid 90 days after the billing, the
Consultant may institute collection action and the Client shall pay all costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. All
fees paid hereunder are nonrefundable.

8. Data Accuracy: Any data deliverables are considered mapping grade quality and should not be used for engineering design or
construction work without being verified by a licensed professional surveyor.

?. ;-Iurdware in Excess of Five Years Old: Consultant will not provide support services for hardware of Client that is more than five

5) years old.

10. Izlliring Practices: During the term of this Agreement and for one year thereafter, neither party shall (directly or indirectly, on
their own behalf or on behalf of a third party) hire or engage any employee or independent contractor of the other party, for work
on this Agreement, or any other agreement or work of the hiring party, without the prior written consent of the other party, nor
encourage any employee or contractor to leave the employ of the other party. This section is not intended to restrict the rights of
employees of either party to seek and obtain employment or engagement by the other party on their own initiative or in response
to publicly posted employment advertisements or job fairs, provided no solicitation occurs on the part of the hiring party, directly
or indirectly. Consultant is an equal opportunity employer and values diversity. Consultant does not discriminate based on race,
religion, color, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, marital status, veteran status, or disability status.

56



928 W. Mt. Vernon St.
A CLOUDPOINT Metamora, IL 61548

877.377.8124
sales@cloudpointgeo.com

_ GEOSPATIAL

11. Information for the Sole Use and Benefit of the Client: All opinions and conclusions of the Consultant, whether written or oral,
and any electronic data, plans, specifications or other documents and services provided by the Consultant are for the sole use
and benefit of the Client and should only be used for the purposes intended as may be described in the Proposal, in this
Agreement, or by Consultant in the course of providing the Services. Nothing contained in this agreement shall create a
contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of any third party against either the Consultant or the Client.

12. Confidential Information:

a. During the course of this Agreement, one party may be entrusted with various information (in each case, the “Recipient”)
that the other party intends to remain confidential (in each case, the “Discloser”), including but not limited to, processes,
marketing plans, financial information, general business plans, and any other materials which the Recipient knows or should
reasonably know the Discloser intends to remain confidential, which may concern and/or belong to Discloser, the Discloser's
actual or prospective partners, vendors, and suppliers, or Discloser’'s customers or clients, and which may be in electronic,
physical, written, oral or any other form (collectively, the “Confidential Information”).

b. For clarity, the terms of this Agreement shall be considered Confidential Information of Consultant. If this document
becomes subject to a FOIA request the Client must request a redacted version of the document from the Consultant. Consultant
will provide a redacted version within two business days of the request.

c. The term “Confidential Information” does not include any information which at the time of disclosure is in the public domain,
is already known by Recipient at the time of disclosure as demonstrated by Recipient's records, is rightfully obtained by Recipient
on a non-confidential basis from a third party, or which was independently developed by Recipient without reference to the
Confidential Information of Discloser.

d. The Recipient shall not use for its own benefit, and shall not disclose, or authorize any third party to use or disclose, any
Confidential Information of the Discloser, except as may be necessary to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Recipient may disclose Confidential Information to the limited extent required in order to comply
with applicable law, or the order of a court or other governmental body, provided that it first provides given written notice to the
Discloser and makes a reasonable effort to obtain a protective order where applicable.

e. If the parties previously entered into a non-disclosure agreement (an “NDA”) addressing treatment of confidential
information of the parties which remains in effect, such NDA shall survive except to the extent that it directly conflicts with this
Agreement, in which case this Agreement will control.

13. Intellectual Property:

a. As between Consultant and Client, Consultant holds all right, title, and interest to any and all inventions, ideas, patentable
material, software code, designs, devices, methods, technology, trade secrets, concepts, methodologies, goodwill, trademarks,
service marks, trade names, and general intangibles incorporated within the Services or otherwise provided by Consultant to
Client (collectively, the “Consultant IP"). This Agreement does not grant upon Client any rights to use such Consultant IP in any
manner except in connection with use of the Services.

b. The Consultant will own the intellectual property rights to any solutions or other developments developed or
conceived of as part of the Services and hereby reserves the right to redistribute or resell said property to any interested
party upon removing Client’'s identifying information. This is not a work made for hire agreement. If Client sends or
transmits any communications or materials to Consultant suggesting or recommending changes to the Services,
including without limitation, new features or functionality relating thereto, or any comments, questions, suggestions, or the
like, Provider is free to use such feedback, and Client hereby assigns the same to Consultant.

14. Liability Insurance: The Consultant maintains insurance coverage of the following types - Professional Liability, Commmercial
General Liability, Automobile Liability, Umbrella Policy, and Cyber Insurance. Certificates of insurance will be provided to Client with
additional insured listing upon request.

15. Disclaimer of Warranties: CONSULTANT MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES ABOUT THE SERVICES, THE SUITABILITY OF
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED ON OR RECEIVED THROUGH USE OF THE SERVICES, OR ANY RESULTS RECEIVED THROUGH OR THAT MAY BE
ACHIEVED THROUGH THE SERVICES. THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND CONSULTANT HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES,
WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY, OR OTHERWISE. CONSULTANT SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURSUE, TITLE, NONINFRINGEMENT, AND ALL WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF
DEALING, USAGE, OR TRADE PRACTICE. The Consultant shall not be required to execute any documents that would result in the
Consultant certifying, guaranteeing, or warranting the existence of any conditions. Nothing contained in the Proposal, in any of
Consultant’s marketing materials, or any oral statements made by Consultant or its representatives, will alter the limitations and
disclaimers set forth in this paragraph.

16. Limitation of Liability: IN RECOGNITION OF THE RELATIVE RISKS, REWARDS, AND BENEFITS OF THE PROJECT TO BOTH THE CLIENT AND
THE CONSULTANT, THE RISKS HAVE BEEN ALLOCATED SUCH THAT THE CLIENT AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THAT
THE CONSULTANT'S TOTAL LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, EXPENSES OR CLAIM EXPENSES
ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT FROM ANY CAUSE OR CAUSES (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE CONSULTANT'S NEGLIGENCE,
ERRORS, OMISSIONS, STRICT LIABILITY, BREACH OF CONTRACT OR BREACH OF WARRANTY) SHALL BE LIMITED TO TWO HUNDRED FIFTY
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($250,000) OR THE FEES PAID TO CONSULTANT BY CLIENT IN THE 12 MONTHS PERIOD PRECEDING THE EVENT GIVING
RISE TO THE CLAIM, WHICHEVER IS LESS. ADDITIONALLY, IN NO EVENT WILL CONSULTANT BE LIABLE TO CLIENT FOR ANY INCIDENTAL,
SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INDIRECT DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES FOR DELETION,
CORRUPTION, LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF PROGRAMS, FAILURE TO STORE ANY INFORMATION OR OTHER CONTENT MAINTAINED OR
TRANSMITTED BY THE SERVICES, SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS, OR FOR THE COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE SERVICES) ARISING OUT
OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF THE SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT.

57



928 W. Mt. Vernon St.
A CLOUDPOINT Metamora, IL 61548

m CEOSPATIAL 877.377.8124

sales@cloudpointgeo.com

17. Indemnification: Each party to this Agreement (in the capacity of “Indemnitor”) hereby agrees to indemnify, and hold the other
party (in the capacity of “Indemnitee”) harmless from and against all costs, liabilities, damages, including, reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs (collectively, “Indemnified Costs"”) relating to or arising out of (i) a breach of this Agreement; (ii) a grossly negligent
or more culpable act or omission by Indemnitor; or (jii) improper or intended use of the Services or the results thereof by Client as
Indemnitor.

18. Third-Party Services & Information: Unless specifically stated, this proposal does not include any software licensing or
maintenance fees for software. Client is responsible for providing the necessary software licensing for solutions deployed to and
operated on their system. The Consultant is not responsible for any licensing violations brought on by the Client’s negligence. To
the extent that any third party services, including any software and any hosting services, are incorporated within the Services, are
provided to Client as part of the Services, or are recommended by Consultant, Client acknowledges and agrees that (a) the same
may be subject to third party terms and conditions and Client is responsible for reviewing the same; and (b) Consultant is not and
shall not be liable for any errors in the Third Party Services, nor any liabilities or damages arising from Client’s use of or access to
any Third Party Services. Further, the Consultant will not be liable for the accuracy, completeness, or costs associated with data
acquired from other sources or retrieved from Client servers when requested by the Client.

19. Amendments: No amendments shall be made to this agreement without prior written consent by both parties. Amendments
to this agreement may only be made by approved personnel from either party having authority to negotiate terms of agreements
for their respective party. In the event of any conflict between the Proposal and this Agreement, or between this Agreement and
any other information or statements provided by Consultant, including invoices, this Agreement shall control.

20. Force Majeure: Consultant shall not be responsible for damages arising directly or indirectly from any delays or causes
beyond the Consultant's control. For purposes of this Agreement, such causes include, but are not limited to, severe weather
disruptions or other natural disasters or acts of God; fires, riots, war or other emergencies; failure of any government agency to act
in timely manner; failure of performance by the Client, the Client's representatives, or the Client's consultants to act in a timely
manner. Consultant shall be compensated accordingly for additional costs incurred because of such delays.

21. Dispute Resolution: Any claims or disputes between the Client and the Consultant arising out of the services to be provided by
the Consultant or out of this Agreement shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation. The Client and the Consultant agree to
include a similar mediation agreement with all contractors, subconsultants, subcontractors, suppliers and fabricators, providing
for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution among all parties.

22. Governing Law & Jurisdiction: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under and in accordance with the laws of
the State of lllinois, USA, without regard to its choice of law provisions. Any litigation arising out of the agreement or the relationship
of the parties hereto must be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Woodford County, lllinois, or the federal district courts
for the Northern District of lllinois. The prevailing party in any such action will be entitled to recover court costs, reasonable
attorneys' fees, and other legal expense from the non-prevailing party in addition to any other remedy.

23. survival & Severability: Sections 6, 7, 10 through 24, and any other provision which by its language or intent should survive, will
survive termination of this Agreement. In the event any of the provisions of this agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court
of competent jurisdiction, the same shall be deemed severable, and as never having been contained herein, and this agreement
shall then be construed and enforced in accordance with the remaining provisions hereof.

24. Assignment: No assignment by Client of this agreement, or of any rights or obligations hereunder, will be valid without the prior
written consent of the Consultant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this agreement inures to the benefit of and will be binding upon
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legatees, administrators, executors, legal representative, successors and permitted
assigns.

25. Counterparts: This agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all
of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. Scanned images of signatures and other electronic signatures will
be considered equivalent to original signatures.

Sighatures

Name: Signature:

Job Title: Date:

58




P-25-19
COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Property Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County's Property Committee recommends to the County Board to approve
the attic insulation project in the Courthouse; and

WHEREAS, P.J. Hoerr received bids from subcontractors including lllinois Construction
Group, DASHCO, and Goley. lllinois Construction Group as subcontractor was deemed the
best overall option at a total project cost of $35,547.82; and

WHEREAS, P.J. Hoerr will oversee this project through our existing relationship with them
as construction manager over renovations and property improvements to Tazewell County’s
existing buildings and properties; and

WHEREAS, the project is funded for in the Capital Improvement Plan Fund; and

WHEREAS, the County Administrator recommends approving the bid and is authorized to
proceed with the project.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the attic insulation project at
the Courthouse.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the
Finance Office, the Facilities Director and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19" DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

59



November 4, 2025

Mindy Darcy
County Administrator / Finance Director
Tazewell County

Re: Proposal
Tazewell County Courthouse - Attic Insulation Revised

Dear Mindy,

Below is the cost for the above referenced project.

Scope
e Set up dust barrier as needed

e Dumpster

¢ Blow R49 Cellulose in attic above the third floor using roof access
¢ Cleaning by PJ Hoerr

¢ See attached proposals

[Attic Insulation [ $ 35,547.82
Labor Dumpster Material Sublet PM Procore Fee TOTAL
$ 1,520.00 $ 50000 $ 30000 $ 31,263.00 $ 984.00 $ 3022 $ 950.59 $ 35,547.82
16 Est. PJH Hrs 8 PM Hrs 0.09% 2.75%

Notable Assumptions:
e This pricing is valid for 30 days.
e The owner will allow access at the facility during normal working hours Monday - Friday.
¢ This proposal does not include identification, abatement or remediation of any hazardous materials.
¢ This proposal does not include Performance and Payment Bonding.
¢ This proposal does not include sales tax.
¢ Builders Risk Provided by Owner.

If you have any questions about the above information do not hesitate to contact our office.

Sincerely,

Charlie Waibel
P.J. Hoerr, Inc.

60



Illinois Construction Group Proposal
6105 South Navajo Drive 25-092
Peoria, lllinois 61607

PJ Hoerr Construction Date: 9/25/2025
Attn: Charlie Waibel

107 N. Commerce Place

Peoria, IL 61604

Project: Tazewell County Courthouse
Project #

SCOPE Description Amount
BLOWN INSULATION
Blow R49 Mineral / Fiberglass Loose Fill Insulation into the Attic
TOTAL AMOUNT FOR MATERIAL & LABOR - BLOWN INSULATION: $31,263.00

*This includes the mobilization of the crane to place the equipment & material onto the roof
*This includes the demobilization of the crane to remove the equipment & debris from the roof
*We need to work/schedule the crane service during morning hours (7:00am-10:00am)
*The parking lot between the courthouse & Sheriff's Department is where the crane will be staged
*We are asking for cooperation between lllinois Construction Group / Courthouse / Sheriff Department
*Possible solution - Mobilize on Columbus Day (if the courthouse is closed)
*All work will be performed during normal working hours (7:00am-3:30pm)

61



62



63



DASHCO INC.

dba. Rainguard/Energy Tech

4901 S. Becker Dr. Bartonville, IL 61607 309-633-1383

Tazewell Court House 9/23/2025
Pekin, IL.

Job # 25-136

We will supply material & labor for the following scope of work;

Install 14” cellulose loose insulation.

Includes lift to access from the roof.

Clean debris that is accessible thru roof hatch.

GC to provide dumpster.

$33,450.00

DASHCO, Inc. is a CERTIFIED MINORITY CONTRACTOR (WBE)

64



COMMITTEE REPORT F-25-29

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Veteran’s Assistance received donations totaling $363.00; and

WHEREAS, Steve Saal, Veteran’s Assistance Director has requested these funds be
moved for use for end of the year food provisions; and

WHEREAS, the funds were unexpected, as were the costs these funds covered; and

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to
authorize the recognition of an increase of available expenditure funds and revenues
within the Veteran’s Assistances fiscal year 2025 budget as follows:

Revenues:
230-550-4711 — Donations: $363.00

Expenditures:
230-550-5171 - Food: $363.00

WHEREAS, this action does not represent an additional appropriation of funds by the
Veteran’s Assistance department, it solely represents recognizing the increase of
available expenditure funds within the Veteran’s Assistance budget as a result of the
donations, as well as a corresponding increase in the revenue budget.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the stated
recommendation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the
Finance Office, the Treasurer, the VA Office, and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19™ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

65



COMMITTEE REPORT F-25-30

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, in FY25, Tazewell County received $361,250 of grant funds from the lllinois
Voter Registration System; and

WHEREAS, funds are being used by the County Clerk’s Office to purchase updated voter
registration technology from Liberty Systems in the amount of $361,250, which was
approved in E-25-56 and an Emergency Declaration dated June 18, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to
authorize the recognition of an increase of available expenditure funds and revenues
within the County Clerk’s fiscal year 2025 General Fund budget as follows:

Revenues:
100-602-4100, Federal Grants $361,250

Expenditures:
100-602-5557, Miscellaneous Equipment $341,500, and
100-602-5262, Professional Services $19,750

WHEREAS, this budget transfer will result in a net $0 increase in the overall FY25
budget; and

WHEREAS, this action does not represent an additional appropriation of funds by the
County Board, it solely represents recognizing the increase of available expenditure
funds as a result of the awarded grant and corresponding increase in the revenue
budget.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the stated
recommendation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office,
County Clerk’s Office, Courts, Treasurer’s Office, Finance Office, and the Auditor of this
action.

PASSED THIS 19™ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

66



ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

67



F-25-31

COMMITTEE REPORT
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it be
adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County board to authorize the
following budget transfer for Community Development

e Transfer $8500.00 from 100-300-5252 Consulting to 100-300-5210 Building Code
Inspections

WHEREAS, the transfer is necessary to reconcile the current line deficit and cover the cost of
contractual inspectors through the end of FY25; and

WHEREAS, the reliance on contractual inspectors has been due to the reliance on contractual
inspectors due to the lack of a full time inspector since March 2024.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the transfer of funds.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVEDTHAT THE County Clerk notified the County Board Office,
Community Development, Finance, the Treasurer and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19™ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025

ATTEST:

TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

68



F-25-32
COMMITTEE REPORT
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it be
adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County board to authorize the
following budget transfer for Information Technology

e Transfer $2000.00 from 100-611-5325 Computer Maintenance to 100-611-5110 Office
Supplies

WHEREAS, the transfer is needed to allow the purchase of supplies for the IT technicians to
provide daily support to employees.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the transfer of funds.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVEDTHAT THE County Clerk notified the County Board Office,
Community Development, the Treasurer, Finance, and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19™ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025

ATTEST:

TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

69



F-25-33

COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and
recommends that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County's Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to
approve an increase in the per diem for Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals
from $60.00 to $75.00; and

WHEREAS, the Board appointed Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals hold public
hearings, reviewing testimony and evidence to establish findings of fact to support
their Administrative Decision; and

WHEREAS, the ZBA may review up to ten cases per month; and

WHEREAS, a Zoning Board of Appeal meeting may last between two and six hours
per meeting depending on the number of petitions being heard, and

WHEREAS, the recently approved FY26 budget will support the increased per diem;
and

WHEREAS, the last per diem increase from $40 to $60 was approved County Board
was March 318t, 2004.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves this recommendation.

BET IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk Notified the County Board Chairman,
County Administrator, Community Development Administrator, Finance, Payroll, and
Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19t DAY of NOVEMBER 2025.

ATTEST:

TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

70



F-25-34
COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County board to
authorize the following budget transfer for Community Development

e Transfer $1000.00 from 100-300-5122 Appeals Board to 100-300-5400 Education
and Training

WHEREAS, the transfer will allow staff to obtain additional training needed for
certifications and continued education credits related to code enforcement.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the transfer of funds.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVEDTHAT THE County Clerk notified the County Board Office,
Community Development, the Treasurer, Finance, and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19™ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025

ATTEST:

TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

71



COMMITTEE REPORT F-25-35

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to
authorize budget line transfers for the FY25 budget at the request of the Administrator;
and

WHEREAS, the transfer of funds is needed to cover the cost of the negotiated salary
and benefit changes included in Tazewell County’s labor agreement with Teamsters,
Chauffeurs and Helpers Local Union No. 627, also known as Unit B; and

WHEREAS, budget transfers are needed in both the General Fund and the Animal
Control Fund as detailed in the attached document.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the transfer of funds.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office,
Animal Control, Treasurer, Finance, and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

County Clerk County Board Chairman

72



Budget Transfers - General Fund & Animal Control Fund

FY25 Budget Transfer from Adjustments Line to Wage Lines for Salaries, SS & IMRF Costs Related to the Settled

Contract Between Tazewell County & Teamsters, Chauffeurs and Helpers Local Union No. 627
(Contract Dates 12.1.24-11.30.27)

Transfer To
Fund/Department:

From:

To:

73

GF - Public Defender 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-120-5003 Support Staff 3,985.00
GF - Public Defender 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-120-5070 Social Security 304.85
GF - Public Defender 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-120-5080 IMRF 323.18
GF - Sheriff's Office 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-200-5005 Part Time 2,260.00
GF - Sheriff's Office 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-200-5070 Social Security 172.89
GF - Sheriff's Office 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-200-5080 IMRF 183.29
GF - Sheriff's Office 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-202-5003 Support Staff 18,586.00
GF - Sheriff's Office 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-202-5070 Social Security 1,421.83
GF - Sheriff's Office 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-202-5080 IMRF 1,507.32
GF - Community Developmt 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-300-5003 Support Staff 3,933.00
GF - Community Developmt 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-300-5070 Social Security 300.87
GF - Community Developmt 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-300-5080 IMRF 318.97
GF - County Clerk 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-602-5003 Support Staff 20,618.00
GF - County Clerk 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-602-5070 Social Security 1,577.28
GF - County Clerk 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-602-5080 IMRF 1,672.12
GF - Recorder 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-603-5003 Support Staff 6,329.00
GF - Recorder 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-603-5005 Part Time 1,008.00
GF - Recorder 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-603-5070 Social Security 561.28
GF - Recorder 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-603-5080 IMRF 595.03
GF - Treasurer 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-605-5003 Support Staff 7,055.00
GF - Treasurer 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-603-5070 Social Security 539.71
GF - Treasurer 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-603-5080 IMRF 572.16
GF - Finance 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-613-5003 Support Staff 4,934.00
GF - Finance 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-613-5070 Social Security 377.45
GF - Finance 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-613-5080 IMRF 400.15
GF - Assessments 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-620-5003 Support Staff 7,679.00
GF - Assessments 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-620-5005 Part Time 987.00
GF - Assessments 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-620-5070 Social Security 662.95
GF - Assessments 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-620-5080 IMRF 702.81
GF - Facilities Maintenance 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-630-5004 Maintenance 10,818.00
GF - Facilities Maintenance 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-630-5005 Part Time 1,192.00
GF - Facilities Maintenance 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-630-5070 Social Security 918.77
GF - Facilities Maintenance 100-610-5649 Adjustments 100-630-5080 IMRF 974.01
- ___ ___________________________________________________ |
Animal Control Fund 231-530-5649 Adjustments 231-530-5003 Support Staff 3,525.00
Animal Control Fund 231-530-5649 Adjustments 231-530-5037 Animal Control Officer 9,682.00
Animal Control Fund 231-530-5649 Adjustments 231-530-5038 Kennel Services 5,709.00
Animal Control Fund 231-530-5649 Adjustments 231-530-5070 Social Security 1,447.07
Animal Control Fund 231-530-5649 Adjustments 231-530-5080 IMRF 1,534.09
General Fund Total 103,470.92
Animal Control Fund Total 21,897.16
125,368.08



HR-25-24

COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Human Resources Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and
recommends that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, representatives of Tazewell County/Tazewell County Sheriff and
Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Council have reached a tentative three-year
agreement on behalf of the Deputies and Sergeants covering December 1, 2024
through November 30, 2027; and

WHEREAS, the agreement includes the following wage increases:
December 1, 2024: 5% General Increase

December 1, 2025: 4% General Increase

December 1, 2026: 3% General Increase; and

WHEREAS, the attached tentative agreement makes additional changes to
discipline and discharge, labor-management conferences,
seniority/layoffs/recalls, hours of work/overtime, holidays, sick leave, insurance,
wages, and miscellaneous provisions.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board
Office, Auditor, Finance, Sheriff, and Treasurer of this action.

PASSED THIS 19™" DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

74



ILLINOIS FOP
LABOR COUNCIL

and

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL /
TAZEWELL COUNTY
SHERIFF

Deputy Sheriffs & Sergeants

December 1, 2024 — November 30, 2027

Springfield - Phone: 217-698-9433 / Fax: 217-698-9487
Carol Stream - Phone: 708-784-1010 / Fax: 708-784-0058
Web Address: www.fop.org
24-hour Critical Incident Hot Line: 877-IFOP911


http://www.fop.org/

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL / TAZEWELL COUNTY SHERIFF
AND
ILLINOIS

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE
LABOR COUNCIL

December 1, 2024- November 30, 2027

76



COUNTY OF TAZEWELL /
TAZEWELL COUNTY SHERIFF

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE PAGE

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION AND PURPOSE 1
Section 1 — Unit Description 1
Section 2 — Supervisors 2

Section 3 — Sheriff’'s Auxiliary
ARTICLE 2 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

ARTICLE 3 UNION SECURITY
Section 1 — Membership Dues Checkoff
Section 2 — Indemnification

ARTICLE 4 MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS
Section 1 — Economic Benefits and Work Practices
Section 2 — Inadvertent Errors

ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTING
Section 1 — General Policy
Section 2 — Notice and Discussion

ARTICLE 6 NON-DISCRIMINATION
Section 1 — Prohibition Against Discrimination
Section 2 — Union Membership or Activity
Section 3 — Use of the Masculine Pronoun

ARTICLE 7 WORK STOPPAGE
Section 1 — Statutory Provision
Section 2 — Strike and Lockout Prohibited
Section 3 — Union Action
Section 4 — Penalties

ARTICLE 8 BILL OF RIGHTS
ARTICLE 9 RESOLUTION OF IMPASSE
ARTICLE 10 PERSONNEL FILES

Section 1 — Inspection
Section 2 — Union Access
Section 3 — Employee Rights

ARTICLE 11 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Section 1 — Definition
Section 2 — Just Cause

77



Section 3 — Limitation

Section 4 — Use of Prior Warnings
Section 5 — Written Notice
Section 6 — Appeal Process

ARTICLE 12 DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
Section 1 — Definition
Section 2 — Just Cause
Section 3 — Limitation
Section 4 — Use of Prior Warnings
Section 5 — Written Notice
Section 6 — Appeal Process

ARTICLE 13 LABOR-MANAGEMENT CONFERENCES
Section 1 — Meetings
Section 2 — Grievances Not Discussed
Section 3 — Notice
Section 4 — Employee Not To Be Paid

ARTICLE 14 SENIORITY / LAYOFFS / RECALLS
Section 1 — Probation
Section 2 — Definition of Seniority
Section 3 — Loss of Seniority
Section 4 — Seniority List
Section 5 — Layoffs
Section 6 — Recalls
Section 7 — Promotion
Section 8 — Personal Day Selection
Section 9 — Days Off Bidding
Section 10 — Shift Bidding

ARTICLE 15 F.O.P. REPRESENTATIVES
Section 1 — Attendance at Union Meetings
Section 2 — F.O.P. State or National Conferences
Section 3 — Manpower Replacement
Section 4 — Union Negotiating Teams

ARTICLE 16 HOURS OF WORK / OVERTIME
Section 1 — Work Day and Work Week
Section 2 — Overtime Pay
Section 3 — Break Periods
Section 4 — Lunch Period
Section 5 — Court Appearances
Section 6 — Callback
Section 7 — Responsibility to Work Overtime/Overtime Equalization
Section 8 — Trading Days

ARTICLE 17 VACATIONS

Section 1 — Vacation Leave
Section 2 — Years of Service

78



Section 3 — Vacation Pay

Section 4 — Earning Vacation Time
Section 5 — Accrued Vacation Time
Section 6 — Use of Vacation Time
Section 7 — Vacation Scheduling

ARTICLE 18 HOLIDAYS
Section 1 — Recognized and Observed Paid Holidays
Section 2 — Compensation
Section 3 — Recognized Holidays

ARTICLE 19 PERSONAL DAYS

ARTICLE 20 SICK LEAVE
Section 1 — Purpose
Section 2 — Accumulation
Section 3 — Credit Upon Retirement
Section 4 — Notification
Section 5 — Return to Work
Section 6 — Working on Sick Leave
Section 7 — Sick Leave Abuse Sanctions
Section 8 — Light Duty
Section 9 — Transfer of Accrued Leave

ARTICLE 21 FUNERAL LEAVE

ARTICLE 22 UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSCENCE
Section 1 — Criteria for Unpaid Leaves
Section 2 — Prohibition Against Misuse of Leaves

ARTICLE 23 INSURANCE
Section 1 — County Contributions
Section 2 — Retirement
Section 3 — Liability Insurance
Section 4 — Insurance Committee
Section 4.1 — Alternate Insurance Study
Section 5 — Survivors’ Insurance
Section 6 — Union Insurance Plan
Section 7 — Affordable Care Act (ACA) Compliance

ARTICLE 24 INDEMNIFICATION
Section 1 — Employer Responsibility
Section 2 — Legal Representation
Section 3 — Cooperation
Section 4 — Applicability

ARTICLE 25 SAFETY ISSUES

Section 1 — Safety Committee
Section 2 — Safety Complaints

79



ARTICLE 26

ARTICLE 27

Section 1 —
Section 2 —
Section 3 -

ARTICLE 28

Section 1 —
Section 2 —
Section 3 —
Section 4 —
Section 5 —
Section 6 —
Section 7 —
Section 8 —

ARTICLE 29

Section 1 —
Section 2 —
Section 3 —
Section 4 —
Section 5 —
Section 6 —
Section 7 —
Section 8 —
Section 9 —

ARTICLE 30

Section 1 —
Section 2 —

ARTICLE 31

Section 1 —
Section 2 —

SIGNATURES

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B

BULLETIN BOARDS

PHYSICAL FITNESS
Agreement in Principle
Test
Achievement Bonus

WAGES
Base Pay Rates
Educational Additions
Longevity
Shift Differential
Regular Hourly Adjusted Base Rate
Regular Hourly Adjusted Base Rate
Working Out of Classification
Detective, Canine, MEG Assignment, and Field Training Officer

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
Work Rules and Personnel Policies
Uniform Allowance
Printing of Agreement
Authorized F.O.P. Labor Council Representatives
Right to Examine Records
Replacement and Repair
Family Immunization
Comp Time Pool
Alcohol and Drug Testing

ENTIRE AGREEMENT / SAVINGS CLAUSE
Entire Agreement / Waiver
Savings Clause

DURATION

Term of Agreement
Continuing Effect

80



AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL / TAZEWELL COUNTY SHERIFF
AND
ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE LABOR COUNCIL

This Agreement is entered into by County of Tazewell / Tazewell County Sheriff, hereinafter referred to
as “Employer” or “Management” and lllinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, as the collective
bargaining agent for certain employees of County of Tazewell / Tazewell County Sheriff, hereinafter
referred to as “Union”.

It is the purpose of this Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the Employer
and the Union, to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustments of differences, which may arise, and
to establish this written Agreement covering standards of wages, hours, and working conditions of
employment, to be observed between the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 1
RECOGNITION AND PURPOSE

Section 1 - Unit Description

The Employer hereby recognizes lllinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, as the sole and
exclusive bargaining representative for the purpose of collective bargaining on any and all matters
relating to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of all employees in the
bargaining unit as follows:

Included: All sworn officers below the rank of Captain, excluding the Jail Superintendent.

Excluded: All other employees of Tazewell County Sheriff's Department including all
confidential, managerial, and supervisory employees as defined by the lllinois
Public Labor Relations Act.

Section 2 - Supervisors
Supervisors may continue to perform bargaining unit work. Such work by supervisors shall not
cause any layoffs of the bargaining unit employees.

Section 3 - Sheriff's Auxiliary
Auxiliary personnel shall only be used in accordance with applicable state statute. Auxiliary personnel
may not be used to obviate the payment of overtime to bargaining unit employees.

ARTICLE 2
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as specifically limited by the express provisions of this Agreement, the Employer retains
traditional rights to manage all affairs of the Sheriff's Office, as well as those rights set forth in the Illinois
Public Labor Relations Act. Such management rights shall include, but are not limited to, the following:

5

81



A. To plan, direct, control and determine all operations and services of the

County Sheriff's Office;
B. To supervise and direct employees;
C. To establish the qualifications for employment and to decide which applicants

will be employed;

D. To establish reasonable work rules and work schedules and to assign work
as the Employer deems necessary. Such work rules and schedules shall be
posted in a place and manner as mutually agreeable to the Employer and the

Union;

E. To hire, promote, transfer, schedule and assign employees to positions and
to create, combine, modify and eliminate positions within the Tazewell County
Sheriff's Office;

F. To suspend, demote, discharge and take such other disciplinary action

against employees for just cause (probationary employees without cause);

G. To establish reasonable work and productivity standards and, from time to
time, amend such standards;

H. To lay off employees;

l. To maintain efficiency of Tazewell County Sheriff's Office operations and
services;

J. To determine methods, means, organization and number of personnel by
which such operations and services shall be provided,;

K. To take whatever action is necessary to comply with all applicable state and
federal laws;
L. To, change or eliminate methods, equipment and facilities for the

improvement of operations;

M. To determine the kinds and amounts of services to be performed as it pertains
to operations and the number and kind of classifications to perform such
services;

N. To contract out for goods and/or services, pursuant to Article 5;

O. To take whatever action is necessary to carry out the functions of the Tazewell

County Sheriff's Office in emergency situations.
As to the meaning of the term “Employer” or “Employers” in interpreting and/or applying the

provisions of this collective bargaining agreement, the provisions of 5 ILCS 315/3(0) and the lllinois Public
Labor Relations Act and the Sheriff and the County Board are joint employers shall be applied.

82



However, nothing in this collective bargaining agreement shall negate the lllinois Constitutional
provisions as the Office of Sheriff and/or the terms of 55 ILCS 5/3-6018 that the Sheriff is in charge of the
internal operations of his office.

ARTICLE 3
UNION SECURITY

Section 1 - Membership Dues Checkoff

Upon receipt of written authorization by the employee, submitted on a form provided for by the
Union, the Employer shall deduct from each employee’s paycheck such Union membership dues. Such
deduction shall continue until the employee revokes his/her written authorization in the same manner as
it was initially given or until the termination date of this Agreement.

The amount of deductions provided for herein shall be remitted to the Union on a monthly basis,
accompanied by a listing of the employee, his/her social security number, and the specific deduction and
amount for each.

Section 2 — Indemnification

The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold the Employer harmless against any claim, demand,
suit or liability arising from any action taken by the Employer in complying with this Article.

ARTICLE 4
MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS

Section 1 - Economic Benefits and Work Practices

The County agrees that wages now paid above the minimums set forth in this Agreement, and all
economic benefits and work practices not in conflict with this Agreement and, currently in effect, shall
continue and remain in effect for the term of this Agreement.

Section 2 - Inadvertent Errors

It is agreed that the provisions of this Section shall not apply to inadvertent or bona fide errors made by
the County or the Union in applying the terms and conditions of this Agreement if such error is corrected
within ninety (90) days from the date of discovery of error.
ARTICLE5
SUBCONTRACTING

Section 1 - General Policy

It is the general policy of the Employer to continue to utilize employees to perform work for which
they are qualified and available to perform. The Employer reserves the right to contract out any work that
it deems necessary in the interest of efficiency, safety, economy, improved work product, or in the event
of an emergency.

Section 2 - Notice and Discussion

Except in case of an emergency, when the Employer contemplates changing its policy involving
the subcontracting or work in the bargaining unit area, and such change amounts to a significant deviation

7

83



from past practice and would result in the layoff of any bargaining unit employees, the Employer shall
notify the Union and offer the Union an opportunity to discuss and to participate in considerations involving
the desirability of such subcontracting of work, including means by which to minimize the impact on such
employees.
ARTICLE 6
NON-DISCRIMINATION

Section 1 - Prohibition Against Discrimination

Both the Employer and the Union agree to refrain from any acts of discrimination in violation of any
state or federal law on the basis of race, sex, creed, religion, color, marital or parental status, age, national
origin, political affiliation and/or beliefs, or other non-merit factors. Claims of discrimination under this
Section are not subject to the grievance procedure contained in this Agreement.

Section 2 - Union Membership or Activity

Neither the Employer nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this
Agreement to become or to refrain from becoming members of the Union, and there shall be no
discrimination against any such employees because of lawful Union membership or non-membership
activity or status.

Section 3 - Use of the Masculine Pronoun

The use of the masculine pronoun in this or any other document is understood to be for clerical
convenience only, and it is further understood that the masculine pronoun includes the feminine pronoun
as well.

ARTICLE 7
WORK STOPPAGE

Section 1 - Statutory Provision

The parties acknowledge that this bargaining unit is a security employees unit under Public Act 83-
1012 (lllinois Public Labor Relations Act) and that the employees of this bargaining unit are prohibited by
law from striking.

Section 2 - Strike and Lockout Prohibited

Neither the Union nor any of its officers, agents or County employees will instigate, promote,
encourage, sponsor, engage in or condone any strike, slowdown, concerted work stoppage, sympathy
strike or any other intentional interruption of work during the term of this Agreement. The Employer shall
not lock out any employees in the bargaining unit during the term of this Agreement. Employees shall not
refuse to cross any picket lines that may be present on worksites placed there by any organization.

Section 3 - Union Action

Upon naotification by the Employer to the Union or its agents that certain of its members are engaged
in activity that is in violation of Section 1 or 2, Article 7 of this Agreement, the Union shall immediately
order such members in writing to return to work. The Union will also provide the Employer with a copy of
such order and a responsible official of the Union shall publicly order such workers to return to work. In

8

84



the event that a strike or other violation not authorized by the Union occurs, the Union agrees to take all
reasonable effective and affirmative action to assure the members return to work as promptly as possible.

Section 4 — Penalties

Any or all employees who have been found to have violated any of the provisions of Article 7 may
be discharged or otherwise disciplined by the Employer; such discipline may include loss of unearned
compensation, holiday pay and other unearned benefits. In an arbitration proceeding involving a breach
of this Article the sole question for the arbitrator to determine is whether the employee engaged in
prohibited activity. In addition to the penalties provided herein, the Employer may enforce any other legal
rights and remedies to which it may be entitled by law.

ARTICLE 8
BILL OF RIGHTS

Whenever a law enforcement officer is under investigation or subject to interrogation by the Sheriff’s
Department, the investigation or interrogation shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of
“Uniform Peace Officers Disciplinary Act”, 50 ILCS 725/1, et. seq. In addition to the provisions of the above-
cited act:

A. The Employer shall not adopt any resolution or ordinance and the Sheriff's
Department shall not adopt any regulation, which prohibits the right of an
officer to bring suit arising out of his duties as an officer.

B. No photo of any officer under investigation shall be made available to the
media prior to a conviction for a criminal offense or prior to a decision being
rendered, unless otherwise required to comply by court order, subpoena, or a
Freedom of Information Act request.

C. The Sheriff's Department shall not compel an officer under investigation to
speak or testify before, or to be questioned by, any non-governmental agency
without subpoena powers relating to any matter or issue under investigation.

D. The officer shall have the right to be represented at such inquiries,
investigations, or interrogations by a Union representative. Nothing in this
Section is intended to or should be construed to waive employees’ right to
Union representation during questioning that the employee reasonably
believes may lead to discipline.

E. Bargaining unit employees shall have such rights as set forth in the United
States Supreme Court decision in NLRB v. Weingarten, 420 U.S. 251 (1975)
and Department of Central Management Services and Corrections (Morgan)
decision, 1 PERI 1 2020 (ISLRB, 1985).

ARTICLE9
RESOLUTION OF IMPASSE

In the event the collective bargaining process reaches an impasse with the result that the Employer
and the Union are unable to effect a settlement, the provisions of 5 ILCS 315/14, as amended, shall prevail.

9

85



For the purpose of this Section, an impasse shall be deemed to occur in the collective bargaining
process if the parties do not reach a settlement of the issue or issues in dispute by way of a written
agreement.

ARTICLE 10
PERSONNEL FILES

Section 1 — Inspection

Inspection and use of personnel files shall be in accordance with the lllinois Personal Records Act,
820 ILCS 40/0.01 et seq.

Section 2 - Union Access

An employee who is involved in a current grievance against the Employer may designate in writing
that a Union representative may inspect his or her personnel file subject to the procedures contained in
Section 1 of this Article. Personnel files shall not be accessed without the Sheriff or his designee in
attendance.

Section 3 - Employee Rights

If an employee disagrees with any information contained in his or her personnel file, the employee
may submit a written statement, which will be included in the file.

ARTICLE 11
DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Section 1 — Definition

The parties recognize the principles of progressive and corrective discipline. Disciplinary action or
measures under this Agreement shall include only the following:
Oral Reprimand
Written Reprimand
Suspension (Notice to be given in writing)
Demotion
Discharge

moowz

Discipline (including reprimands and suspensions) and discharge may be imposed by the Tazewell
County Sheriff. Other reasonable conditions of employment related to the offense may be imposed
after discipline. Any disciplinary action or measure imposed pursuant to this Agreement upon an
employee may be processed as a grievance through the regular grievance procedure.

If the Employer has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not
embarrass the employee before other employees or the public.

Section 2 - Just Cause

Employer agrees that disciplinary action for all non-probationary employees shall only be imposed
for just cause and shall be imposed as soon as practical after Employer learns of the occurrence giving

10

86



rise to the need for disciplinary action and after Employer has a reasonable opportunity to investigate the
facts.

Section 3 - Limitation

The Employer’'s Agreement to use progressive and corrective disciplinary action does not prohibit
the Employer in any case from imposing discipline, which is commensurate with the severity of the offense.
Offenses which will require severe discipline shall include but are not limited to:

Unlawful possession of a controlled substance or alcohol;

intentional destruction or theft of County property;

fighting on-the-job;

appearing for work under the influence of drugs or alcohol or other substance that may impair an
employee’s ability to perform any of their duties required.

o0w»

Both the employee and Union shall be notified of disciplinary action. Such notification shall be in
writing and reflect the specific nature of the offense.

Section 4 - Use of Prior Warnings

Any written warning or suspension of two (2) days or less shall not be considered in imposing
disciplinary penalty for a current offense when more than twenty-four (24) months have elapsed from the
written warning or suspension of less than three (3) days. Provided however, that an arbitrator or judge
reviewing the merits of a suspension, demotion or discharge case shall review the employee’s entire
personnel file.

Section 5 - Written Notice

Both the employee and the Union shall be notified of disciplinary action; such notification shall be
in writing and reflect the specific nature of the offense and directions to the employee for future behavior.

Section 6 — Appeal Process

Suspension and discharge may be appealed to and subject to the jurisdiction of the Sheriff's Merit
Commission according to applicable State law. Disciplinary action resulting in an-eral-reprimandwritten
reprimand; suspension, demotion, or discharge, may, in the alternative, be subject to appeal through the
Grievance and Arbitration Procedure as provided in this Agreement. Oral and written reprimands are not
subject to appeal to the Sheriff's Merit Commission, or through the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure
in_Article 12 of this Agreement, unless the oral and/or written reprimand is based upon the Deputy
having engaged in conduct as defined in Section 6.3(b) of the lllinois Police Training Act [50 ILCS
8705/6.3(b)] which could lead to decertification of the Deputy.

Notice of said disciplinary action shall be provided to the employee in writing.

The Grievance Procedure and the Merit Commission process are mutually exclusive and no relief
shall be available under the Grievance Procedure for any action heard before the Merit Commission and
vice versa. The filing of a grievance shall act as a waiver by the Union and the involved employee of the
right to challenge the same matter before the Sheriff's Merit Commission and an employee’s request for
a hearing before said Commission. A request for a hearing before the Merit Commission shall act as a
waiver by the Union and the involved employee of the right to process the same matter through the

11

87



Grievance and Arbitration Procedure of this Agreement. Any and all grievances involving discipline shall
be filed at Step 2 of Article 12, Section 8 hereof.

ARTICLE 12
DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1 - Definition of a Grievance

A grievance is defined as any dispute between the Employer and the Union or any employee
regarding the application, meaning or interpretation of this Agreement which remains unresolved following
completion of the dispute resolution process. This grievance procedure is subject to and shall not conflict
with any provisions of the lllinois Public Labor Relations Act.

Section 2- Dispute Resolution

In the interest of resolving disputes at the earliest possible time, it is agreed that an attempt to
resolve a dispute shall be made between the employee and his or her immediate supervisor.

The employee shall make his or her complaint to his or her immediate supervisor. The supervisor
will notify the employee of the decision within four (4) business days following the day when the complaint
was made. A “business day” is defined as Monday through Friday, excluding weekends and holidays.
Settlements or withdrawals at this step shall not constitute a precedent in the handling of other disputes.
In the event of a complaint, the employee shall first complete his/her assigned work task, and complain
later.

Section 3 — Representation

Grievances may be processed by the Union on behalf of an employee or on behalf of a group of
employees. The Employer may file contract grievances directly at Step 3, Section 8 of this Article. Either
party may have the grievant or one grievant representing group grievants present at any step of the
grievance procedure, and the employee is entitled to Union representation at each and every step of the
grievance procedure upon his request.

Grievances may be filed on behalf of two or more employees only if the same facts, issues and
requested remedy apply to all employees in the group.

Section 4 - Subject Matter

Only one subject matter shall be covered in any one grievance. A grievance shall contain a
statement of the grievant’s position, the Article, and Section of the Agreement allegedly violated, the date
of the alleged violation, the relief sought, and the signatures of the grieving employee(s) and a Union
representative, and the date.

Section 5 - Time Limitations

Grievances may be withdrawn at any step of the grievance procedure without precedent.
Grievances not appealed within the designated time limits will be treated as withdrawn grievances with
prejudice.

12

88



The Employer’s failure to respond within the time limits shall not find in favor of the grievant, but
shall automatically advance the grievance to the next step, except Step 2; however, in no case shall the
time between Step 2 and Step 3 exceed forty-five (45) days. Time limits may be extended by mutual
agreement.

Section 6 — Investigation

Insofar as practicable, grievances shall be investigated during off-duty hours. In those instances
where it is necessary for the Union representative or any other bargaining unit employee to participate in
an investigation of a grievance during working hours, permission must be obtained from the Sheriff or a
person designated by him; such permission shall not be unreasonably denied, and the investigation must
be conducted in such a manner as to not interfere with the normal operation of the Sheriff's Department.

Section 7 - Grievance Meetings

Grievance meetings will be scheduled so as to minimize interference with the operation of the
Sheriff's Department. With the permission of the Sheriff, one (1) employee (the grievant or a Union
representative) may be excused from work with pay to participate in a Step 1, Step 2, or Step 3 grievance
meeting. Employee(s) shall only be excused for the amount of time reasonably required to present the
grievance. Employee(s) shall not be paid for any time during which a grievance meeting occurs outside
the employee’s work shift. In the event of a grievance, the employee(s) shall first perform his/her assigned
work task and file his/her grievance later.

Section 8 - Steps in Procedure
Disputes arising under this Agreement shall be resolved as follows:

Step 1. If no agreement is reached between the employee and the Supervisor,
as provided for in Section 2, Dispute Resolution, the Union may
prepare a written grievance on a form mutually agreed to (see
Grievance Form Appendix) and present the same to the Chief Deputy
which shall not be more than fifteen (15) business days from the date
of the event or occurrence giving rise to the grievance regardless of
the limitation periods provided for in Section 2. The Chief Deputy will
respond to the Union representative or the employee in writing within
five (5) business days.

If no agreement is reached between the employee and the Chief
Deputy, the grievant may forward the grievance to the Sheriff within
fifteen (15) business days from the date of the receipt of the Step 1
response. The Sheriff will respond to the Union representative or the
employee in writing within five (5) business days and indicate whether
the Sheriff or his designee will hear the grievance (all management
rights issues), or the County Board Governance Committee will hear
the grievance (all financial issues). A hearing will then be conducted
within fifteen (15) business days after receipt of the Sheriff's directional
decision. A written decision will be issued to the grievant and the Union
(and the Sheriff when heard by the County Board) within five (5)
business days after the hearing date.

R
@
N

13

89



Step 3. If the dispute is not settled at Step 2, the matter may be submitted to
arbitration by the Union within fifteen (15) business days after the
Committee’s written decision or the expiration of the five (5) day period
if the Committee fails to render a written decision. Within fifteen (15)
business days after the matter has been submitted to arbitration, a
representative of the Employer and the Union may meet to select an
arbitrator from a list of mutually agreed to arbitrators.

If the parties cannot mutually agree to an arbitrator, a joint request for a panel of arbitrators shall
be submitted to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. Each party has the right to reject one list
in its entirety and the striking order shall be determined by a toss of the coin.

The arbitrator shall be notified of his/her selection by a joint letter from the Employer and the Union.
Such letter shall request the arbitrator to set a time and a place for the hearing subject to the availability
of the Employer and Union representatives and shall be notified of the issue where mutually agreed by
the parties. All hearings shall be held in the City of Pekin, Illinois, unless otherwise agreed to.

Both parties agree to make a good faith attempt to arrive at a joint statement of facts and issues to
be submitted to the arbitrator.

The Employer or Union shall have the right to request the arbitrator to require the presence of
witnesses and/or documents. Each party shall bear the expense of its witness.
Questions of arbitrability shall be decided by the arbitrator. The arbitrator shall make a preliminary
determination of the question of arbitrability. Once a determination is made that the matter is arbitrable or
if such preliminary determination cannot be reasonably made, the arbitrator shall then proceed to
determine the merits of the dispute.

The expenses and fees of the arbitrator mutually agreed to and the cost of the hearing room shall
be shared equally by the parties. The decision and award of the arbitrator shall be made within forty-five
(45) days following the hearing and shall be final and binding on the Employer, the Union, and the
employee or employees involved. The arbitrator shall have no power to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add
to, or subtract from the provisions of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 13
LABOR-MANAGEMENT CONFERENCES

Section 1 - Meetings

The Union and the Employer mutually agree that in the interest of efficient management and
harmonious employee relations, it is desirable that meetings be held between Union representatives and
responsible administrative representatives of the Employer. Such meetings shall not be scheduled more
frequently than one each quarter, except by mutual agreement. The party requesting a “Labor-
Management Conference” shall make the request in writing to the other party and provide the agenda for
such meeting. If the employee is assigned to attend any such “Labor-Management Conference” by the
Sheriff, expenses associated with such assignment shall be paid in accordance with Tazewell County
travel policy. Such meetings and locations shall be limited to:

A. Discussion on the implementation and general administration of this
Agreement.
B. A sharing of general information of interest to the parties.

14

90



C. Notifying the Union of changes in non-bargaining conditions of employment
contemplated by the Employer, which may affect employees.

The Employer and the Union agree to cooperate with each other in matters of the administration of
this Agreement, and to the degree that standards of law enforcement can be effectuated for the maximum
protection of the citizens of the State of lllinois. The Employer and Union agree to cooperate with each
other in the administration of this Agreement, including working together to schedule any Labor
Management Conferences (“LMC”), or local meetings to address FOP business in preparation for the LMC
(“Prep Meeting”), in such a manner that will allow the appropriate Employer and Union representatives the
ability to attend said LMC or Prep Meetings without interfering with or otherwise negatively impacting the
operations of the Tazewell County Sheriff's Office. Accordingly, when any LMC or Prep Meeting is
scheduled during the same time that a Union representatives is scheduled to be on-duty, the Union
representative shall be allowed to attend the LMC or Prep Meeting upon providing, when possible, at least
forty-eight (48) hours written notice to the Sheriff of the Union representative’s plan to attend the LMC or
Prep Meeting, which written notice shall include the date, time, and estimated duration of the LMC/Prep
Meeting. In the event that the number of on-duty union representatives giving written notice of their plan
to attend the LMC or Prep Meeting would create a staffing shortage, or raise any concerns for the safety
of the other Deputies working during any LMC or Prep Meeting, and/or safety of the citizens of Tazewell
County, the Sheriff shall promptly advise the Union of same and may require that the LMC or Prep Meeting
be rescheduled, or that one or more union members remain on duty and not attend the LMC/Prep Meeting.
Union and Employer acknowledge and agree that radio/service calls shall take priority over any Union
representative’s attendance at any scheduled LMC or Prep Meeting.

To effectuate the purposes and intent of the parties, both parties agree to meet as necessary.

Section 2 - Grievances Not Discussed

It is expressly understood and agreed that such meetings shall be exclusive of the grievance
procedure. Grievances being processed under the grievance procedure shall not be considered at “Labor-
Management Conferences”, nor shall negotiations for the purpose of altering any or all of the terms of this
Agreement be carried on at such meetings.

Section 3 — Notice

When absence from work is required to attend “Labor-Management Conferences”, Union members
shall, before leaving their work station, give reasonable notice to and receive approval from, the Sheriff or
his designee.

Section 4 - Employee Not To Be Paid

It is expressly understood and agreed that the employee shall not be paid for attending any “Labor-
Management” meeting referred to in this Article, unless such pay is approved by the Sheriff.

ARTICLE 14
SENIORITY/LAYOFES/RECALLS

Section 1 — Probation

15

91



Bargaining unit employees hired after the implementation of this Agreement shall serve a
probationary period from their date of hire and will conclude twelve (12) months after successful
completion of academy and field training. In no event shall a bargaining unit employee’s probationary
period exceed eighteen (18) months from their original date of hire. During the probationary period, the
employee shall be subject to dismissal for any reason without recourse to the grievance procedure. Upon
the completion of the probationary period, the employee shall be granted seniority rights from his or her
most recent date of hire. Should a probationary deputy miss more than thirty (30) consecutive days of
work, then the time missed shall not count towards the 12-18 month probationary period.

All employees who are promoted by the Sheriff shall serve a probationary period in accordance
with 55 ILCS 5/3-8011.

Section 2 - Definition of Seniority
Seniority is defined as the employee’s length of continuous full-time service with the Employer since
the employee’s last date of hire as a commissioned deputy.

Section 3 - Loss of Seniority

Seniority and the employment relationship shall be terminated if an employee:
A. Quits;

B. Is discharged;

C. Is absent from work three (3) consecutive days without notification to or
approval by the Employer, other than because of proven sickness, or is unable
to notify the Employer because of physical incapacity or other reasonable
excuse;

D. Is laid off for more than two (2) years or fails to report for work within fourteen
(14) calendar days after having been recalled from layoff;

E. Fails to report for work at the termination of a leave of absence;

F. If an employee is on leave of absence for personal or health reasons and
accepts other employment without permission, or if an employee is absent
due to an off-the-job illness or injury and is absent for a period of eighteen (18)
months or longer; or

G. If he or she is retired.

Section 4 - Seniority List

The Employer shall post and supply to the Union an updated seniority list for bargaining unit
employees on a current basis.

Section 5 — Layoffs

When the Employer determines that layoffs are necessary, the Employer shall have the sole
discretion to determine the number of employees to be laid off. Employees shall be laid off in the reverse
order of their seniority.

16

92



In the event of layoff of employees covered by this Agreement, the Employer agrees not to hire
civilian personnel to perform the duties that only a peace officer can perform. A peace officer shall be
defined to mean any person who, by virtue of their office, is vested by law with a duty to maintain public
order and make arrests for offenses.

The employer shall give sixty (60) days prior notice of layoff to the employee and the union.

Section 6 - Recalls

Employees shall retain recall rights for two (2) years. If the Employer authorizes that a vacancy be
filled, employees on layoff with recall rights who have held the classification previously, shall be recalled
by seniority.

Employees who are eligible for recall shall be given three (3) calendar days’ notice of recall by
registered or certified mail sent to the employee’s last known address. It is the responsibility of the
employee on layoff to provide the Employer with his latest mailing address. The employee must notify the
Employer within three (3) days after receipt of the notice whether the employee will accept recall.

An employee’s seniority shall be suspended while laid off from the department. All service earned
prior to being laid off will be reinstated upon recall.

Section 7 — Promotion

Seniority shall be considered in the promotion of employees covered by this Agreement.

Section 8 - Personal Day Selection

Requests for personal days for the fiscal year may be submitted anytime after December 18
Personal days will be awarded on a first come first served basis. Personal day requests submitted to the
Sheriff or his designee at the same time will be resolved in favor of the senior employee.

Section 9 - Days Off Bidding

Patrol deputies and Sergeants shall be allowed to select regular days off by seniority on separate
sign-up lists. Sergeants and deputies shall submit a request in writing to the Sheriff or his designee no
later than ten (10) working days prior to the effective date. The Sheriff or his designee shall post a list of
available days off for bidding no later than twenty{20} forty (40) working days prior to the effective date.
The effective date for implementing shall be December 15t and June 1%t of each year during the term of
this Agreement. On or before these dates the bidding process will have been completed and the affected
deputies will have been assigned the requested days off. In the event of same day requests, seniority shall
be the determining factor.

In the event of transfer as determined by the Sheriff from one shift to another, the affected deputy
shall be required to take the days off of the deputy replaced until bidding occurs as provided for herein
above. In the event of adding personnel to a shift, the days off will be determined by the Sheriff, as long
as the assigned days off of those previously assigned shall not be disturbed.

Section 10 — Shift Bidding

17

93

























































The Employer agrees to repair or replace as necessary an officer's eye glasses, contact lenses,
cell phone (up to $75), and personal effects if such are damaged or lost, if during the course of the
employee’s duties the employee is required to exert physical force or is attacked by another person.
Incident to be documented with immediate supervisor.

Section 7 - Family Immunization

The Employer agrees to pay all expenses for inoculation or immunization shots, at a facility
designated by the Sheriff, for the employee and for members of an employee’s family when such becomes
necessary as a result of said employee’s exposure to contagious diseases where said officer has been
exposed to said disease in the line of duty. Subject to supervisor approval, the employee shall be allowed
release time to receive such inoculation or immunization shots.

Section 8 - Comp-Time Pool

Each employee will be allowed to assign up to three (3) hours comp-time to a comp-time pool for
authorized use by a Union member for the purpose of conducting State Union and Labor Council business.
Use of the comp-time pool shall not cause overtime to the Department, nor count towards the maximum
forty (40) hour comp-time accumulation.

Section 9 — Alcohol and Drug Testing

A. Statement of Policy: It is the policy of Tazewell County and the lllinois Fraternal Order of
Police Labor Council that the public has the right to expect persons employed by the Tazewell
County Sheriff’'s Department to be free from the effects of drugs and alcohol. The Employer
has the right to expect its employees to report for work fit and able for duty. The purposes
of this policy shall be achieved in such manner as not to violate any established rights of
bargaining unit employees.

B. Prohibitions: Employees shall be prohibited from:

1) Consuming or possessing alcohol, unless in accordance with duty requirements, at any
time during the work day or anywhere on any County premises, job sites, including all
County buildings, properties, vehicles and the employee's personal vehicle while
engaged in County business;

2) lllegally consuming, possessing, selling, purchasing or delivering any illegal drug;

3) Failing to report to their supervisor any known adverse side effects of medication or
prescription drugs that they are taking.

This section is not intended to limit the duty of the Employer to enforce the laws of the State of
lllinois and all regulations of the Tazewell County Sheriff's Department, or to restrict the Employer's
right to require prospective hires to submit to a drug screening procedure.

C. Drug and Alcohol Testing: When the Sheriff has reasonable suspicion to believe that an
employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs during the course of the work day, the
Sheriff shall have the right to require the employee to submit to alcohol or drug testing as set

36

112



forth in this Agreement. Employees who test positive for either prescribed drugs or alcohol
by virtue of the employer having reasonable suspicion are subject to random testing for
period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of the confirmed positive test result as a
condition of continued employment.

. Order _to Submit to Testing: At the time an employee is ordered to submit to testing
authorized by this Agreement, the Sheriff shall provide the employee with a written notice of
the order, setting forth the objective facts and reasonable inferences drawn from those facts
which have formed the basis of the order to test. The employee shall be permitted to consult
with a Union representative or a private attorney at the time the order is given; provided,
however, that in no circumstances may implementation of the order be delayed longer than
forty five (45) minutes. No questioning of the employee shall be conducted without first
affording the employee the right to Union representation and/or legal counsel. Refusal to
submit to such testing may subject the employee to discipline, but the employee's taking of
the test shall not be construed as a waiver of any objection or rights that he/she may have.

. Tests to Be Conducted: In conducting the testing, authorized by this Agreement, the
Tazewell County Sheriff's Department shall:

1) Use only a clinical laboratory or hospital facility that is licensed pursuant to the Illinois
Clinical Laboratory Act that has or is capable of being accredited by the National Institute
of Drug Abuse (NIDA);

2) Ensure that the laboratory or facility selected conforms to all NIDA standards;

3) Establish a chain of custody procedure for both sample collection and testing that will
ensure the integrity of the identity of each sample and test result. No employee covered
by this Agreement shall be permitted at any time to become a part of this chain of custody;

4) Collect a sufficient sample of the same bodily fluid or material from an employee to allow
for initial screening, a confirmatory test and a sufficient amount to be set aside reserved
for later testing if requested by the employee;

5) Collect samples in such a manner as to insure a high degree of security for the sample
and its freedom from adulteration;

6) Confirm any sample that tests positive in the initial screening for drugs by testing the
second portion of the same sample by gas chromatography/ mass spectrometry (GCMS)
or an equivalent or better scientifically accurate and accepted method that provides
guantitative data about the detected drug or drug metabolites;

7) Provide the employee tested with an opportunity to have the additional sample tested by
a clinical laboratory or hospital facility of the employee's own choosing, at the employee's
expense; Provided the employee makes such demand of the Sheriff or his designee
within seventy-two (72) hours of receiving the results of the test;

8) Require that the laboratory or hospital facility report to the Sheriff that a blood or urine
sample is positive only if both the initial screening and subsequent confirmatory test
indicate the presence of a substance. Should any information concerning such testing or
the results thereof be used herein (i.e. billings for testing that reveal the nature or number

37

113















Appendix A (Dues Deduction Form)

[,
%
Dues Authorization
Form CONTRACT & N

Appendix B (Grievance Form)

[,
%
Grievance Form (3
Steps) FILLABLE 7-11-,

42

118



COMMITTEE REPORT RM-25-03

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Risk Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that
it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County’s Risk Management Committee recommends to the County
Board to authorize the County’s Worker's Compensation, Property, Automobile, Liability,
et al. Insurance contracts effective December 01, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the County extended the insurance broker service agreement with Envision
Insurance Group for property and casualty insurance programs in RM-24-04, which runs
through the end of fiscal year 2027; and

WHEREAS, the nature of the insurance industry and process of obtaining
comprehensive liability insurance quotes is such that attempts to obtain price quotes
from a variety of providers through the statutory competitive bidding processes would
actually result in a less competitive market for purchasing; and

WHEREAS, lllinois State Statutes at 55 ILCS 5/5-1022 provide that the general
requirement to competitively bid purchases in excess of $30,000 does not apply to
contracts which by their nature are not suitable to competitive bids pursuant to an
ordinance adopted by the County Board; and

WHEREAS, Envision Insurance Group sought pricing from multiple vendors that were
unwilling to supply pricing due to either not being competitive in pricing with the
current providers or not willing to provide coverage with the law enforcement function;
and

WHEREAS, Envision Insurance Group proposes the following providers:

Travelers Property, liability, auto, inland marine, and $441,781
umbrella

IPRF Worker's compensation $151,183

Victor Cyber liability $42,400

Landmark American Nurses’ professional liability $2,989

Cincinnati Public officials’ bonds $650

Total $639,003

119



WHEREAS, the final cost is subject to change based upon property valuations and any
potential changes of coverage.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves this recommendation
and authorizes the County Board Chairman to sign the necessary documents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office,
Treasurer, Human Resources, Finance Office, and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19™" DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

120



- Premium Quotation

v

Insured: Tazewell County
Insurer: Travelers Insurance Company/IPRF/State National Ins Co/Landmark American

Expiring Expiring Renewal
Premium Premium Premium

Coverage 23124 2425 25/26
Property $ 80,157 $ 111,909 $ 123,295
Crime $ 2903 § 2,390 § 2,390
Inland Marine $ 6,027 $ 6,101 $ 6,312
General Liability $ 25,383 % 29,975 § 32,350
Employment Benefit Liability $ 9% $ 47 ' $ 40
Law Enforcement Liability $ 73,506 $ 83,797 % 92,870
Public Entity Management Liability $ 17,622 § 18,900 § 19,987
Public Entity Employment-Related Practices Liability § 20,959 $ 21,240 § 22,995
Auto Liability $ 22,569 § 26,857 § 31,500
Auto Physical Damage $ 10,916 § 11,157 § 13,013
Umbrella $ 68,301 §$ 85,154 $ 97,029
Cyber Liability $ 44925 % 44,925 § 42,400
Workers Compensation $ 164323 $ 143397 § 151,183
Public Official Bonds $ 428 § 428 $ 650

Supervisor of Assessments

Veterans Asst Comm Superintendent

Sheriff

State's Attorney

Auditor

County Clerk/Recorder
Nurse's Professional Liability $ 2,889 $ 2,889 §$ 2,989

@

Total Annual Premium: $ 541,004 $ 589,166 639,003

121




5 ENVISION

;" INSURANCE GROUP

Ms. Mindy Darcy

Tazewell County Administrator
11 S. 4% Street

Pekin, IL 61554

Dear Mindy,

It is my pleasure to present to you, for your review and consideration, with the proposal for renewal

indication on the 2025/2026 Commercial Property & Casualty Insurance program for Tazewell

County.

Beginning in December of 2022, Tim Neuhauser CIC, CRM of Envision Insurance Group was
selected as the exclusive agent of record and was entrusted with managing all aspects of the
Commercial Property & Casualty Insurance needs, on behalf of Tazewell County. Over the past
three years, Tim Neuhauser CIC, CRM and his team have helped Tazewell County stabilize
premium increases, facilitate safety loss control and risk management initiatives, and have been a
constant resource guiding county personnel as decisions are considered and implemented that may

create additional liability or have a negative financial impact for Tazewell County.

I look forward to serving Tazewell County and value our partnership moving forward.

Sincerely,

Tieuha/se}, cic.

122



i ENVISION

INSURANCE GROUP

Insurance Industry Trends and Marketing Summary

All insurance companies, regardless of size, are making drastic changes to property
exposures and adjusting rates accordingly, on average 25-40%.

All insurance companies are mandating higher deductibles and retentions to shift more
upfront risk to the policy holder.

Many companies are making their acceptability guidelines extremely strict and selective,
which is negatively affecting our ability to shop for carriers for comparable alternatives
There are very few insurance companies willing to offer coverage for government or

municipal risks.
Over the past three years we have marketed Tazewell County to numerous insurance
companies. The results are as follows:

l.

NS R

Ilinois Counties Risk Management Trust (ICRMT) declined-not competitive with
expiring premium

The Counties of Illinois Risk Management Agency (CIRMA) -declined

Illinois Municipal League (IML) declined-Law enforcement

Bliss McKnight-declined-not competitive-Law enforcement no umbrella
Travelers Work Comp-declined-not competitive

ICW Work Comp-declined-Law enforcement

Midwest Insurance Company Work Comp-Law enforcement

Bitco Work Comp-declined-not competitive

123



..

ae
s
X3

i ENVISION

E.::: - INSURANCE GROUP

Premium Recap

All deductibles/retentions remain unchanged

Total Blanket Insured Value $101,094,700

Total Insured Work Comp payroll is up $1,414,996 year over
year...$28,193,688 increased to $29,608,684

Travelers Package 10% increase
[PRF Work Comp 5% increase

Cyber Liability 5% decrease

Overall Year over Year 7.6% increase

124



RM-25-04
COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Risk Management Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and
recommends that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County’s Risk Management Committee recommends to the County Board
to approve the worker’'s compensation settlement of case WC-24-014411; and

WHEREAS, the attorney for the IPRF, Tazewell County’s Workers Compensation carrier
has recommended the settlement of WC-24-014411 to the Risk Management
Committee for $3,000.00.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board concurs with the Risk
Management Committee and grants settlement authority for case WC-24-014411 based
upon the terms and authorizes the County Board Chairman to execute all documents
related to this settlement.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the
Treasurer and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19™ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

125



COMMITTEE REPORT E-25-100

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it be adopted
by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/2.06, requires in relevant part:

"The public body shall periodically, but no less than semi-annually, meet to review minutes
and recordings of all closed meetings. Atsuch meetings a determination shall be made, and
reported in an open session that (1) the need for confidentiality still exists as to all or part of
those minutes or (2) that the minutes or recordings or portions thereof no longer require
confidential treatment and are available for public inspection.”

WHERES, the State's Attorney’s Office has reviewed such minutes or recordings and made
recommendations as detailed below, providing that all recordings of meetings herein listed as Open shall be
destroyed and the minutes of those meetings as of this date shall be available for public inspection:

County Board

Date Reason for Closed Session Action
9/24/03 Personnel/Pending Litigation Closed
10/29/03 at 6:39 p.m.  Land Acquisition Closed
10/29/03 at 7:03 p.m.  Probable Litigation Closed
08/31/05 Pending Litigation Closed
05/31/06 Land Acquisition Closed
06/28/06 Personnel Closed
07/26/06 Land Acquisition Closed
06/25/08 Pending Litigation Closed
04/24/19 Pending Litigation Closed
05/31/23 Pending Litigation Closed
6/26/24 Litigation Closed
8/28/24 Litigation Closed
2/26/25 Collective Bargaining Closed
3/26/25 Litigation Closed
5/28/25 Land Acquisition Closed

Executive/Risk Management Committee

Date Reason for Closed Session Action
08/1/02 Pending Litigation Closed
01/23/03 Pending Litigation Closed
01/21/04 Pending Litigation Closed
04/21/04 Pending Litigation Closed
08/18/04 Pending Litigation Closed
10/9/06 Pending Litigation Closed
01/23/08 Pending Litigation Closed
05/21/08 Pending Litigation Closed
07/30/08 Pending Litigation Closed
09/24/08 Pending Litigation Closed
10/22/08 Pending Litigation Closed
04/22/09 Pending Litigation Closed

126



01/20/10

08/31/11

12/14/11

01/18/12 at 4:01 p.m
02/29/2012

01/23/13

05/22/13at 4:04 p.m.
09/18/13

10/23/13

10/23/13

11/20/13

02/19/14

04/30/14 at 7:04 p.m.
05/21/14

06/18/14

08/20/14

09/17/14

10/22/14

11/12/14 at 4:03 p.m.
06/17/15

07/22/15

08/19/15

10/21/15

01/20/16

03/23/16

04/20/16

05/25/16

06/29/16

08/24/16 at 4:01 p.m.
09/21/16

10/29/16

01/18/17 at 4:01 p.m.
01/18/17 at 4:15 p.m.
04/19/17

06/21/17

10/18/17

11/8/17

01/24/18

03/28/18

04/18/18

05/2318

06/20/18

07/18/18 at 4:04 p.m.
07/18/18 at 4:47 p.m.
08/22/18 at 4:00 p.m.
08/22/18 at 4:45 p.m.
09/19/18 at 4:00 p.m.
09/19/18 at 5:20
10/24/18

01/23/19

03/20/19

05/22/19

07/24/19

07/31/19

10/23/19

11/14/19

Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Personnel

Personnel

Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Personnel

Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Personnel

Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation

127

Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed



01/22/20
05/20/20
01/20/21
03/24/21 at 4:01p.m.
03/24/21 at 4:37 p.m.
05/19/21
06/23/21
07/21/21
08/18/21
09/22/21
02/16/22
04/20/22
05/18/22
05/25/22
07/20/22
09/21/22
09/28/22
11/09/22
11/26/22
01/25/23
02/15/23
03/22/23
04/19/23
05/24/23
05/24/23
05/31/23
06/21/23
06/21/23
06/28/23
07/19/23
08/23/23
12/21/23
02/21/24
6/19/24
6/19/24
6/19/24
7124124
7131/24
10/23/24
1/22/25
2/19/25
3/19/25
6/18/25
7/30/25
8/20/25

Human Resources/Finance and Budget Committee

Date

09/16/03
09/29/03
11/18/03
01/20/04
02/03/04
03/23/04
07/20/04
01/18/05

Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation

Land Acquisition/Leasing
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Personnel

Pending Litigation

Land Acquisition/Leasing
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation

Land Acquisition/Leasing
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation

Land Acquisition/Leasing
Land Acquisition/Leasing
Pending Litigation

Land Acquisition/Leasing
Land Acquisition/Leasing
Pending Litigation

Land Acquisition/Leasing
Pending Litigation
Probable Litigation
Security Procedures
Pending Litigation
Probable Litigation
Personnel Matters
Security Procedures
Personnel

Personnel

Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Personnel

Pending Litigation

Reason for Closed Session

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining

Collective Bargaining

Personnel

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules

128

Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed

Action
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed



10/17/06

05/19/09

06/16/09

07/21/09

01/19/10

02/16/10

03/23/10

04/20/10

05/04/10

05/18/10

06/22/10

06/30/10

07/20/10

8/17/10

9/20/10

10/19/10

12/7/10

01/18/11

02/23/11

04/19/11

05/17/11

09/20/11

11/8/11

12/5/11

01/17/12

01/25/12

06/19/12

07/19/12

08/21/12

09/18/12

10/23/12 at 4:09 p.m.
10/23/12 at 5:16 p.m.
11/5/12

01/22/13

02/19/13 at 4:22 p.m.
02/27/13

05/21/13

10/22/13

04/30/14 at 6:23 p.m.
05/20/14

06/17/14 at 5:36 p.m.
06/17/14 at 6:06 p.m.
07/22/14

09/16/14

10/21/14

11/10/14

11/19/14

12/10/14

03/17/15

03/25/15

04/29/15

07/21/15 at 4:45
09/22/15

09/30/15 at 6:34 p.m.
10/20/15 at 3:44 p.m.
11/09/15

Pending Litigation

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Personnel

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Personnel

Personnel

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Personnel

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Pending Litigation

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Personnel

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Pending Litigation

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules

129

Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed



01/19/16
08/23/16
11/7/16 at 3:47 p.m.
11/7/16 at 4:07 p.m.
06/20/17
09/27/17
10/25/17
01/23/18
11/06/18
01/22/19
03/19/19 at 3:50
03/19/19 at 3:54
05/21/19
06/18/19
11/13/19 at 4:24
11/13/19 at 4:41
08/18/20
09/22/20
11/09/20
03/22/22
03/30/22
07/19/22
08/23/22
09/20/22
10/18/22
11/08/22
04/18/23
05/23/23
06/20/23
07/18/23
08/22/23
09/19/23
10/17/23
01/23/24
04/16/24
06/18/24
8/20/24

9/17/24

9/25/24
10/22/24
11/12/24
1/21/25

2/18/25

3/18/25

3/26/25

4122125

5/20/25

5/28/25

6/17/25

6/25/25

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Personnel

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Pending Litigation

Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules

Property Committee

Date

03/21/06
03/21/06
04/18/06

Reason for Closed Session

Pending Litigation
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition

130

Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed

Action
Closed
Closed
Closed



4/26/06
07/18/06
05/22/07
07/17/07
08/21/07
10/16/07
11/14/07
06/13/08
06/17/08
07/22/08
09/16/08
10/21/08
11/13/08
01/20/09
03/17/09
3/23/10
8/17/10
1/18/11
5/21/13
6/18/13
8/20/13
9/10/13
10/22/13
06/17/14
07/22/14
07/30/14
12/10/14
09/08/21
09/29/21
11/09/21
01/18/22
02/15/22
03/22/22
03/30/22
04/19/22
05/17/22
2/20/24
04/16/24
8/20/24
8/28/24
10/22/24
6/17/25
6/25/25

Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Pending/Imminent Litigation
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Personnel

Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Security Procedures
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition
Setting of a Price for Sale or Lease
Land Acquisition
Land Acquisition

Health Services Committee

Date
1/17/01
4/9/02
7/17/02
12/17/04
12/10/09
06/12/14
08/09/18
08/12/21

Reason for Closed Session

Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Pending Litigation
Personnel

Pending Litigation

Land Acquisition/Leasing

Insurance Review Committee

131

Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed

Action
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed



Date Reason for Closed Session

3/18/02 Personnel
6/19/03 Personnel
6/24/04 Personnel
12/8/05 Personnel
04/06/06 Personnel
08/03/06 Personnel
02/08/07 Personnel
04/12/07 Personnel
12/8/11 Personnel
2/14/13 Risk Management
10/12/17 Risk Management
10/2/23 Personnel

Ad Hoc Rules Subcommittee
Date Reason for Closed Session
04/14/23 Probable or Imminent Litigation

Ad Hoc Tax Subcommittee

Date Reason for Closed Session
10/26/06 Personnel

11/20/06 Personnel

12/14/06 Personnel

01/04/07 Pending/Imminent Litigation

Collective Bargaining/Grievance Committee
Date Reason for Closed Session
4/10/13 at 11:00 a.m.  Personnel

4/10/13 at 1:01 p.m. Personnel

5/2/13 at 1:36 p.m. Personnel

5/2/13 at 2:12 p.m. Personnel

10/1/13 Personnel

12/17/13 at 9:02 a.m.  Personnel

12/17/13 at 9:21 a.m.  Personnel

06/16/14 Personnel
06/26/14 Personnel
07/22/14 Personnel
09/23/14 Personnel
06/08/16 Personnel
05/11/18 Personnel
01/06/20 Personnel
3/19/25 Evidence or Testimony

Hay Group Sub-Committee
Date Reason for Closed Session
10/24/14 Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules

Transportation Committee
Date Reason for Closed Session
11/12/19 at 9:03 a.m.  Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules

Ad Hoc ARPA Committee

Date Reason for Closed Session
08/19/21 Land Acquisition

132

Action
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed

Action
Closed

Action
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed

Action
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed

Action
Closed

Action
Closed

Action
Closed



Whereas, your Executive Committee recommends that the County Board approve the
recommendation of the State's Attorney’s Office regarding the six month review of closed session minutes
and recordings.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all closed session minutes available for public inspection be
placed in the appropriate minute books, the corresponding recordings be destroyed, and that such minutes and
recordings remaining closed to the public shall be kept separately under seal, all within the Office of the
County Clerk.

PASSED THIS 19" DAY OF November, 2025.

ATTEST:

COUNTY CLERK BOARD CHAIRMAN

133



E-25-110

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created to provide services to State's Attorneys
in Counties containing less than 3,000,000 inhabitants; and

WHEREAS, the powers and duties of the Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor are defined and
enumerated in the "State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor's Act”, 725 ILCS 210/1 et seq., as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly appropriates monies for the ordinary and contingent expenses of the Office of
the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor, one-third from the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s County Fund and two-
thirds from the General Revenue Fund, provided that such funding receives approval and support from the respective Counties
eligible to apply; and

WHEREAS, the Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor shall administer the operation of the appellate
offices so as to insure that all participating State's Attorneys continue to have final authority in preparation, filing, and arguing
of all appellate briefs and any trial assistance; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Tazewell County Board, in regular session, this
_19thday of November, 20£ does hereby support the continued operation of the Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate
Prosecutor, and designates the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor as its Agent to administer the operation of
the appellate offices and process said appellate court cases for this County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the attorneys employed by the Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor are
hereby authorized to act as Assistant State's Attorneys on behalf of the State's Attorney of this County in the appeal of all cases
when requested to do so by the State's Attorney, and with the advice and consent of the State’s Attorney, prepare, file, and
argue appellate briefs for those cases; and also, as may be requested by the State's Attorney, to assist in the prosecution of
cases under the Nlinois Controlled Substances Act, the Cannabis Control Act, the Drug Asset Forfeiture Procedure Act, and the
Narcotics Profit Forfeiture Act. Such attorneys are further authorized to assist the State's Attorney in the trial and appeal of tax
objections.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor will offer Continuing Legal
Education training programs to the State’s Attorneys and Assistant State's Attorneys.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the attorneys employed by the Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor may
also assist the State's Attorney of this County in the discharge of the State's Attorney's duties in the prosecution and trial of
other cases, and may act as Special Prosecutor if duly appointed to do so by a court having jurisdiction.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor is duly appointed to act as a
Special Prosecutor in this County by a court having jurisdiction, this County will provide reasenable and necessary clerical and
administrative support and victim-witness coordination on an as-needed basis and will also cover all reasonable and necessary
case expenses such as expert witness fees, transcripts, evidence presentation, documents, lodgings, and all other expenses
directly related to the prosecution of the case.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Tazewell County Board hereby agrees to participate in the service program of the
Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor, commencing December 1, 2025 and ending November 30, 2026, by hereby
appropriating the sum of $41,000 as consideration for the express purpose of providing a portion of the funds required for
financing the operation of the Office of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor, and agrees to deliver the same to the Office
of the State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor on request during the stated twelve month period.

Passed and adopted by the County Board of Tazewell County, lllinois, this

19th  dayof November 2025 .

Chairman

ATTEST:

County Clerk

134



135



136



E-25-113

COMMITTEE REPORT
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and
recommends that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County's Executive Committee recommends the County Board
approve the attached Decommissioning Agreement for EIm Grove CSG 1, LLC Solar
Project; and

WHEREAS, the County Board approved the Special Use request for the 4.95 MW
solar project July 31%t, 2025, with conditions; and

WHEREAS, the solar site is approximate 28 acres of a 70 acre parcel located ¥4 West
of Mennonite Church Rd., Pekin, IL Township; and

WHEREAS, the agreement is in accordance with the lllinois Department of
Agriculture’s - Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement, in accordance with 20 ILCS
5/5-222 and Chapters 156 and 157 of the Tazewell County Code.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves this recommendation

BET IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk Notified the County Board Office,
Community Development and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 19" DAY of November 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

137



Elm Grove CSG 1 LLC Solar Project

Decommissioning Plan

Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois

Submitted to:

Dimension Renewable Energy
3050 Peachtree Road

Suite 350

Atlanta, GA 30305

Submitted by:

GEI Consultants

8615 W. Bryn Mawr Ave. Suite 406
Chicago, IL 60631

October 2025

GEI Project #2403528

Dominique Tate, P.E.
Senior Consultant

W=

10/14/25 138 Vincent DiCastelnuovo
Project Engineer



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

Table of Contents

00U 0T 1ot o) 1
System DecommiSSiONING ... 2
Abandonment Definitions ... ————— 3
Timing ReqUIremMents ......cccuumsersmmsmmssmsmmssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssassasssnss 4
Equipment and Material Removal. ... 5-6
Disposal and Recycling of Materials ..., 7
Y LI 2T €0 ot 10 1) o 8
Stakeholder Notification and Construction.........cuunmsnsnssmsnssmssssssssss 9
Decommissioning Bond Estimate and Abandonment ..........ccoousnsmsemsessessenas 10
Change of OWnership ... ———————— 11
Acknowledgement and APProval........—————————— 12

GEI Consultants 8615 W. Bryn Mawr Ave. Suite 406 1@ﬁicago, IL 60631 i



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

1. Introduction

Elm Grove CSG 1 LLC proposes to construct and operate a ground-mounted fixed tilt photovoltaic (“PV”)
solar system, approximately 5.0 MWac in capacity. The EIm Grove CSG 1 LLC Solar Project (“Project”) is
proposed to be located on a privately owned parcel in EIm Grove Township, Tazewell County, Illinois (tax
parcel ID: 11-11-17-300-005.

Ground-mounted solar facilities are designed, engineered, and constructed to operate for at least 20
years and can operate for up to 30 years or more. During construction, portions of the site may be
compacted, excavated, and graded for optimal installation and operation. This decommissioning plan
outlines the steps that will be taken to remove the solar system and its associated appurtenances from
the Project site and return the parcel to conditions similar to pre-installation.

This Decommissioning Plan will be updated as necessary in the future to ensure that changes in
technology and site restoration methods are taken into consideration.

140



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

2. System Decommissioning

Elm Grove CSG 1 LLC is responsible for decommissioning activities, as outlined in the conditions of
permit approval by the local regulatory agencies and pursuant to the guidelines provided in the lllinois
Department of Agriculture’s (“IDOA”) Standard Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement (“AIMA”).
Decommissioning and restoration activities will align with current regulations at the time of
decommissioning and will be conducted in accordance with state and local regulations. At the end of its
operational life, or if the system is abandoned or upon cessation of activity, the entire system will be
disconnected from the grid, disassembled, and removed, and all materials will either be recycled or
disposed of appropriately within a period of 12 months and at the expense of the Facility Owner. Any
necessary permits will be obtained from the local AHJ and/or relevant State authorities prior to
decommissioning activity.

During Tazewell County’s permitting process, or if none, then prior to the commencement of project
construction, EIm Grove CSG 1 LLC shall file with Tazewell County a Deconstruction Plan. The Project shall
additionally file an updated Deconstruction Plan with Tazewell County on or before the end of the tenth
year of commercial operation.

141



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

3. Abandonment Definitions

Pursuant to the IDOA’s form AIMA, a project is considered abandoned when deconstruction has not
been completed within 12 months after the Commercial Solar Energy Facility (“Facility”) reaches the end
of its useful life. Further, the IDOA presumes that a Facility has reached the end of its useful life when the
project owner fails, for a period of 6 consecutive months, to pay the Landowner amounts owed in
accordance with an Underlying Agreement. Written notice will be provided to the AHJ’s Code
Enforcement Officer within 30 days in the event the operation of the system is discontinued. The
Applicant acknowledges that the system must be decommissioned if the Project has not been verified to
be active or in continuous service for the prior year, and that decommissioning notification will be
provided by the Code Enforcement Officer.

142



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

4. Timing Requirements

Decommissioning and removal of the Project will be completed within a period of 12 months from the
time at which the Facility is determined to be abandoned or has reached the end of its useful life. Or, as
noted above, if the Code Enforcement Officer has deemed the Project to be inoperative or abandoned
for the prior year, the equipment both above and below ground, structures, and foundations will be
removed. The facility may be considered abandoned if it has not been operational for a period of 12
months.

143



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

5. Equipment and Material Removal

Elm Grove CSG 1 LLC will remove all above-ground equipment (solar module panels, brackets, support
structures, inverters, transformers, concrete pads for equipment) and underground equipment (buried
electrical wiring and conduits, concrete foundations), structures, fencing, and access roads. All equipment
and materials will be evaluated to determine the appropriate facility for salvage, recycling, or disposal.

5.1. PV Modules

The PV modules will be disconnected from the inverters and removed from the steel racking system. The
PV modules are made of silicon, glass, and aluminum and are not considered hazardous waste. PV
modules will be recycled or resold on the market if determined to still be usable.

5.2. Associated Electrical Appurtenances

All associated electrical appurtenances (i.e. switchboards, transformers, meters) will be removed from
their respective concrete pads or steel frames and disposed of at an approved facility.

5.3. Electric Wiring

All electric conductors made of copper and aluminum can be recycled. Above ground DC wires will be
removed between the modules and inverters. Underground AC conductors will be pulled and removed
unless buried to a depth of at least 5-ft, in which case they may remain in place after decommissioning.
Aboveground AC conductors back to the utility point of interconnection will be removed from the poles
by the utility.

5.4. Racking Equipment and Fencing

Metal fencing and racking equipment will be removed and recycled at an appropriate facility. All driven
posts will be removed.

5.5. Concrete Pad

Concrete pads will be excavated to a depth of two feet below grade, or the depth to retrieve all rebar
and foundation bolts. Clean concrete will be crushed and removed from the site. The remaining
excavation will be filled with clean material, of similar character to surrounding soils. The soil and surface
grade will be restored and revegetated with native seed mixes and/or plant species, excluding invasive
species.

5.6. Access Road

The access road may be left intact following deconstruction through mutual agreement of the
landowner. If required to be removed, gravel roads will be stripped of stone and any geotextile or

144



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

underlying materials and ripped to a depth of at least 18 inches. Clean stone will be reused if possible, or
otherwise disposed of at a proper facility, along with geotextile materials. Any asphalt roads will be
broken up and similarly disposed of. If the underlying soils are compacted, these will be loosened and
stabilized. The soil and surface grade will be restored and revegetated with native seed mixes and/or
plant species, excluding invasive species.

145



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

6. Disposal and Recycling of Materials

All hazardous wastes will be disposed of in accordance with laws in effect at the time decommissioning is
performed. Any solid waste generated during system dismantling or demolition will be disposed of as
necessary to comply with the solid waste regulations then in place. All waste will be removed from the
site.

146



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

7. Site Restoration

The site will be restored to a state consistent with its preconstruction condition. Any necessary
construction stormwater permits will be obtained prior to decommissioning, and erosion and
sediment control best management practices will be installed on site, as needed. After equipment is
removed from site, soils will be de-compacted, and excavations will be filled with materials similar to
soils on site. Any weed control equipment used for the facility will be removed, if applicable. Any
disturbed areas will be reseeded and erosion and sediment control BMPs will remain in place until
the site is stabilized and then removed upon confirmed stabilization. The soil and surface grade will
be restored and revegetated with native seed mixes and/or plant species, excluding invasive species.
Any soil conservation practices present pre-construction shall be restored to their original condition
as close as reasonably practicable following Deconstruction in accordance with USDA NRCS technical
standards.

Following decommissioning, if underground drainage tile lines were present within the footprint of
the facility and were severed or otherwise damaged during original construction, facility operation,
and/or facility decommissioning, the facility owner shall repair existing drainage tiles or install new
drainage tile lines of comparable quality and cost to the original, within the footprint of the facility
with sufficient capacity to restore the underground drainage capacity that existed within the
footprint of the facility prior to construction. Such installation shall be completed within 12 months
after the end of the useful life of the facility.

Decommissioning will follow current guidelines as may be established by the IDOA relating to
Construction Mitigation for Agricultural Lands and shall be updated as guidelines are amended over
time. Current guideline language is attached as Exhibit B.

147



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

8. Stakeholder Notification and Construction

Decommissioning activities will require the use of equipment and vehicles similar to those used in
support of construction activity. As necessary, interested stakeholders, such as adjacent landowners, will
be notified prior to the start of work on site. As noise may be temporarily elevated by construction
equipment and vehicles during decommissioning, activities will only be conducted during accepted Town
work hours. The site will be kept orderly and clean of refuse.

Decommissioning activity is anticipated to be completed within 12 months.
List of Stakeholders to be notified:
Tazewell County — Code Enforcement Officer

Neighbors owning the following adjacent parcels at the time of decommissioning: 11-11-17-300-007,
11-11-18-400-003, 11-11-18-400-004, 11-11-17-300-004, 11-11-17-300-003, 11-11-17-300-006,
11-11-17-400-007, 11-11-17-400-008, 11-11-17-400-009, 11-11-17-400-010.

148



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

9. Decommissioning Bond Estimate and
Abandonment

Prior to the first anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, EIm Grove CSG 1 LLC will provide the
AHJ with financial assurance equal to 10% of the estimated cost of decommissioning, in the form of a
surety or like bond, to provide for the decommissioning of the project and restoration of the site in
accordance with the decommissioning plan and any applicable state and local regulations. The financial
assurance bond shall be increased to 50% before the 6th anniversary, and 100% before the 11th
anniversary.

The total estimated decommissioning bond amount is $717,455.16 (Exhibit A). The decommissioning
cost estimate shall be phased over the life of the project and increase at the inflation rate of the higher
of either 2.5% or the average inflation rate of CPI-U of the three prior calendar years. The amount due
prior to the first anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date is $71,745.52. The Facility Owner shall
bear the cost of preparing and reevaluating the decommissioning cost.

In the event the system is abandoned and/or upon cessation of activity for a period of one year, Tazewell
County may issue notice to the Project. If no restorative action occurs within 12 months of such notice
the Town may use this decommissioning bond for removal of the system.

10

149



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

10. Change of Ownership

Elm Grove CSG 1 LLC understands that the obligation to maintain a decommissioning bond is a
continuing obligation of the owner/operator (EIm Grove CSG 1 LLC) that may not be transferred without
written permission from Tazewell County.

11

150



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

11. Acknowledgement and Approval

Tazewell County hereby acknowledges receipt of this Decommissioning Plan and affirms that the
Decommissioning Plan (assuming establishment of the form of surety agreed upon by the Tazewell County

and EIm Grove CSG 1 LLC) satisfies the conditions of the applicable permit approvals relevant thereto.

Tazewell County

Accepted this ___ day of , 2025

By:

12

151



Project: Elm Grove CSG LLC 1 Solar Array

Engineer: Dominique Tate

Client: Dimension Renewable Energy

Issue Date: 10/14/2025

Location: Tazewell County, lllinois

Revision: 1

GEl Project # 2403528

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST-PV PLANT DECOMISSIONING-ANNUAL INFLATION=4.7%-END OF LIFE: YEAR 30

DISASSEMBLY AND DISPOSAL

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
1 PV Modules 12645 EA S 6.12| S 77,387.40
2 PV Inverters 34 EA S 245.00 | $ 8,330.00
3 PV Transformers 3 EA S 2,200.00 | $ 6,600.00
4 Racking Frame (Single Axis) 469 EA S 208.85| $ 97,952.23
5 Racking Posts 2529 EA S 2390 | $ 60,455.50
6 Tracker Motors 469 EA S 2768 S 12,981.62
7 DC Wiring 126450 LF S 0.25 (S 31,612.50
8 AC Wiring 5110 LF S 0.96 | S 4,905.60
9 7' High Chain Link Fence 4284 LF S 555]|$ 23,776.20
10 Security Gate 1 EA S 2,516.31| S 2,516.31
11 Interconnection Facilities 1 EA S 8,500.00 | $ 8,500.00
12 Concrete 439 cY S 120.00 | S 52,680.00
13 Gravel 2715 CcY S 49.07 | S 133,219.52
14 Offsite Disposal by Volume 2715 cY S 56.62 | S 153,714.83
15 General Conditions and Mobilization 1 LS S 20,000.00 | S 20,000.00
SUBTOTAL S 694,631.70

SITE RESTORATION

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
16 Re-Seeding 28 ACRES S 174.88 | S 4,896.73
17 Erosion and Sediment Control 1 LS S 12,600.00 | S 12,600.00
SUBTOTAL S 17,496.73

SALVAGE

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
18 PV Modules 12645 EA S 450 (S 56,902.50
19 PV Inverters 34 EA S 800.00 | $ 27,200.00
20 PV Transformers 3 EA S 800.00 | S 2,400.00
21 Racking Frame (Single Axis) 257012 LBS S 0.04 | S 10,280.48
22 Racking Posts 2529 EA S 11.80 | S 29,842.20
23 Tracker Motors 469 EA S 0.74 | S 348.14
24 Interconnection Facilities 1 EA S 2,250.00 | $ 2,250.00
25 DC Cable 126450 LF S 0.04 | S 5,058.00
26 AC Cable 5110 LF S 0.04 | S 204.40
27 7' High Chain Link Fence 4284 LF S 0.61(S 2,613.24
SUBTOTAL 5 137,098.96
TOTAL DISASSEMBLY, DISPOSAL, & SITE RESTORATION COST S 712,128.43
20% CONTINGENCY S 142,425.69
TOTAL SALVAGE VALUE $ 137,098.96
NET DECOMMISSIONING COST S 717,455.16

10/14/25

Dominique Tate, PE
Senior Consultant

Date

152




Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

Appendix A Decommissioning Cost Estimate

153



Decommissioning Plan
Elm Grove Township, Tazewell County, lllinois
GEI Project #2403528

Appendix B Decommissioning Bond

154



Bond No.

DECOMMISSIONING BOND

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: That we, _as Principal, and,
,an corporation duly authorized under the
laws of the State of , as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto
, as

Obligee in the maximum aggregate penal sum of
Dollars ($ ), lawful
money of the United States of America, to be paid to the said Obligee, successors or assigns; for

which payment, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, successors,
administrators and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT:

Whereas, the Principal and Obligee have entered into an agreement whereby principal agrees to
complete decommissioning as required under

agreement, dated , which agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and

Whereas, said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for the
faithful performance of the decommissioning referred to in said agreement.

Now, Therefore, the condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded Principal, his or
its heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all thing stand to and abide by, and
well and truly keep and perform the decommissioning provisions in the said agreement and any
alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed at the
time and in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and
meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Obligee, its officers, agents and employees, as
therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain
in full force and effect.

Provided further, that if the Principal fails to respond to the Obligee’s notice of default or fails to
perform its Decommissioning responsibilities as outlined in said agreement the Surety shall promptly
and at the Surety’s election and expense take one of the following actions:

1. Arrange for the Principal, with consent of the Obligee, to perform and complete the
Decommissioning; or

2. Undertake to perform and complete the Decommissioning itself, through its agents or
through independent contractors; or

3. Waive its right to perform the Decommissioning and forfeit the full bond penalty to the
Obligee.

The surety may cancel this bond at any time by giving the Obligee sixty (60) days written notice of
its desire to be relieved of Liability. Should the Principal fail to provide a replacement bond or
alternate financial assurance acceptable to the Obligee within thirty (30) days of the receipt by the
Obligee of the Notice of Cancellation, the surety may choose to reinstate this bond, otherwise the
Surety will be in default and shall forfeit the full Penal Sum of this Bond to Obligee.

155



Nonpayment of the premiums associated with this Bond will not invalidate this Bond nor shall
Obligee be obligated for the payment thereof.

The liability of the Surety under this bond and all continuation certificates issued in connection
therewith shall not be cumulative and shall in no event exceed the amount as set forth in this bond
or in any additions, riders, or endorsements properly issued by the Surety as supplements thereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the signature of said Principal is hereto affixed and the corporate seal
and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact,
day of 20

b

By:

156



E-25-111
REAPPOINTMENT

I, Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Tazewell County (Illinois) Board, hereby reappoint
Sarah Sies of 1529 Stout, Pekin IL 61554 to the Schaeferville Fire Protection District for a
term commencing December 01, 2025 and expiring November 30, 2028.

COMMITTEE REPORT

TO: Tazewell County Board
FROM: Executive Committee

This Committee has reviewed the reappointment of Sarah Sies to the
Schaeferville Fire Protection District and we recommend said reappointment be approved.

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the reappointment of Sarah Sies to the
Schaeferville Fire Protection District.

The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will
notify McGrath Law Office of this action.

PASSED THIS 19t DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

157



E-25-112
REAPPOINTMENT
I, Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Tazewell County (Illinois) Board, hereby reappoint

Jeffrey Keyser of 13871 Keyser Road, Mackinaw, IL 61755 to the Mackinaw Valley Water
Authority for a term commencing December 1, 2025 and expiring November 30, 2028.

COMMITTEE REPORT

TO: Tazewell County Board
FROM Executive Committee

This Committee has reviewed the reappointment of Jeffrey Keyser to the Mackinaw Valley
Water Authority and we recommend said reappointment be approved.

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the reappointment of Jeffrey Keyser to the
Mackinaw Valley Water Authority.

The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will
notify McGrath Law Office of this action.

PASSED THIS 19t DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

158



Zoning Board of Appeals
Duane Lessen, Chair

Health Services
Jay Hall, Chair

Land Use
Russ Crawford, Chair

Insurance Review
Tammy Rich-Stimson, Chair

Board of Health

Transportation
Greg Menold, Chair

Property

Max Schneider, Chair

Finance
Mike Harris, Chair

Human Resources
Mike Harris, Chair

Risk Management
Brett Grimm, Chair

Executive
Brett Grimm, Chair

County Board

Christmas Holiday

No December meeting

No December meeting

No December meeting

No December meeting

Monday, December 8
6:30pm — Health
Department - Tremont

No December meeting

Tuesday, December 9
3:30pm — Justice Center
Conference Room

Tuesday, December 9
following Property — Justice
Center Conference Room

Tuesday, December 9
following Finance — Justice
Center Conference Room

Wednesday, December 10
4:00pm — McKenzie Building
Jury Room

Wednesday, December 10
following Risk Management

Wednesday, December 17
6:00 pm — Justice Center
Conference Room
Wednesday, December 24
and Thursday, December 25

159

Tazewell County Board
Calendar of Meetings
December 2025

Crawford, Hopkins, Stahl, Hall, Goddard,
Woodrow, Schmidgall, Longfellow

Sinn, Hopkins, Longfellow, Goddard,
Stump, Rich-Stimson, Schmidgall

Hopkins, Stahl, Hall, Goddard, Woodrow,
Schmidgall, Longfellow

Graff, Hopkins, Mingus

Hall

Proehl, Graff, Milam, Rich-Stimson,
Nelms, Woodrow

Hopkins, Mingus, Proehl, Harris, Stahl,
Schmidgall, Joesting, Phillips

Schneider, Woodrow, Milam, Mingus,
Proehl, Crawford, Stahl, Joesting,
Schmidgall, Phillips

Schneider, Woodrow, Milam, Schmidgall,
Crawford, Mingus, Proehl, Stahl, Joesting,
Phillips

Harris, Crawford, Hall, Joesting, Menold,
Mingus, Proehl, Sinn, Schneider, Stahl
Harris, Crawford, Hall, Joesting, Menold,
Mingus, Proehl, Sinn, Schneider, Stahl

All County Board Members

County Offices Closed



	D. Communications from elected and appointed county officials
	1. Probation Department Overview by John Horan
	11-10-25-Finance-Agenda Packet.pdf
	F-25-33 ZBA Increase Per Diem Resolution 11.25.pdf
	F-25-33
	COMMITTEE REPORT


	11-10-25 HR-Agenda Packet.pdf
	HR-25-24 - Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council.pdf
	DRAFT 3 Tazewell Co Deputies 10212025.pdf
	Section 3 - Sheriff’s Auxiliary
	Section 1 – Definition
	Section 2 – Accumulation



	11-12-25-Executive-Agenda Packet.pdf
	E-25-113 Elm Grove CSG 1 Decom Resolution.pdf
	COMMITTEE REPORT





